Public Document Pack
Date:
Ask For:
Direct Dial:
Email:

10 August 2021
James Clapson
(01843) 577200
committee@thanet.gov.uk

PLANNING COMMITTEE
18 AUGUST 2021
A meeting of the Planning Committee will be held at 7.00 pm on Wednesday, 18
August 2021 in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Cecil Street, Margate,
Kent.
Membership:
Councillor Tomlinson (Chair); Councillors: Coleman-Cooke (Vice-Chair), Albon,
J Bayford, Crittenden, Garner, Hart, Hopkinson, Keen, Pat Moore, Paul Moore,
Rusiecki, Wing and Wright.

AGENDA
Item
No
1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Pages 3 - 4)
To receive any declarations of interest. Members are advised to consider the
advice contained within the Declaration of Interest advice attached to this
Agenda. If a Member declares an interest, they should complete the
Declaration of Interest Form

3.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 5 - 16)
To approve the Minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on 21/7/2021, copy
attached.

4.

SCHEDULE OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS (Pages 17 - 22)
To consider the report of the Deputy Chief Executive, copy attached for
Members of the Committee.
For Approval

4a

A01 FH/TH/21/0926 - 25A EDITH ROAD, RAMSGATE (Pages 23 - 30)
For Refusal

4b

R02 F/TH/21/0566 - OZENGELL FARMHOUSE, HAINE ROAD, RAMSGATE
(Pages 31 - 52)

Thanet District Council, PO Box 9, Cecil Street, Margate, Kent, CT9 1XZ
Tel: +44 (0)1843 577000
Fax: +44 (0)1843 290906
DX 30555 (Margate)
www.thanet.gov.uk
Chief Executive: Madeline Homer

Page 1

Item
No

Subject

For Deferral
4c

D03 F/TH/21/0064 - LAND ADJACENT TO 2 SHAH PLACE, RAMSGATE
(Pages 53 - 68)

Please scan this barcode for an electronic copy of this agenda.

Page 2

Agenda Item 2
THANET DISTRICT COUNCIL DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Do I have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and if so what action should I take?
Your Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) are those interests that are, or should be, listed on
your Register of Interest Form.
If you are at a meeting and the subject relating to one of your DPIs is to be discussed, in so
far as you are aware of the DPI, you must declare the existence and explain the nature of the
DPI during the declarations of interest agenda item, at the commencement of the item under
discussion, or when the interest has become apparent
Once you have declared that you have a DPI (unless you have been granted a dispensation
by the Standards Committee or the Monitoring Officer, for which you will have applied to the
Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting) you must:1.
2.
3.
4.

Not speak or vote on the matter;
Withdraw from the meeting room during the consideration of the matter;
Not seek to improperly influence the decision on the matter.
Complete the declaration of interest form and submit it to Democratic Services.

Do I have a significant interest and if so what action should I take?
A significant interest is an interest (other than a DPI or an interest in an Authority Function)
which:
1. Affects the financial position of yourself and/or an associated person; or
Relates to the determination of your application for any approval, consent, licence,
permission or registration made by, or on your behalf of, you and/or an associated
person;
2. And which, in either case, a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts
would reasonably regard as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment
of the public interest.
An associated person is defined as:

A family member or any other person with whom you have a close association, including
your spouse, civil partner, or somebody with whom you are living as a husband or wife,
or as if you are civil partners; or

Any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they
are a partner, or any company of which they are directors; or

Any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of
securities exceeding the nominal value of £25,000;

Any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which
you are appointed or nominated by the Authority; or

any body in respect of which you are in a position of general control or management and
which:
- exercises functions of a public nature; or
- is directed to charitable purposes; or
- has as its principal purpose or one of its principal purposes the influence of public
opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union)
An Authority Function is defined as: 
Housing - where you are a tenant of the Council provided that those functions do not
relate particularly to your tenancy or lease; or

Any allowance, payment or indemnity given to members of the Council;

Any ceremonial honour given to members of the Council

Setting the Council Tax or a precept under the Local Government Finance Act 1992
If you are at a meeting and you think that you have a significant interest then you must
declare the existence and nature of the significant interest at the commencement of the

Page 3

Agenda Item 2
matter, or when the interest has become apparent, or the declarations of interest agenda
item.
Once you have declared that you have a significant interest (unless you have been granted a
dispensation by the Standards Committee or the Monitoring Officer, for which you will have
applied to the Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting) you must:1.

2.
3.
4.

Not speak or vote (unless the public have speaking rights, or you are present to make
representations, answer questions or to give evidence relating to the business being
discussed in which case you can speak only)
Withdraw from the meeting during consideration of the matter or immediately after
speaking.
Not seek to improperly influence the decision.
Complete the declaration of interest form and submit it to Democratic Services.

Gifts, Benefits and Hospitality
Councillors must declare at meetings any gift, benefit or hospitality with an estimated value (or
cumulative value if a series of gifts etc.) of £25 or more. You must, at the commencement of
the meeting or when the interest becomes apparent, disclose the existence and nature of the
gift, benefit or hospitality, the identity of the donor and how the business under consideration
relates to that person or body. However you can stay in the meeting unless it constitutes a
significant interest, in which case it should be declared as outlined above.

What if I am unsure?
If you are in any doubt, Members are strongly advised to seek advice from the Monitoring
Officer or the Committee Services Manager well in advance of the meeting.

Page 4

Agenda Item 3
Planning Committee
Minutes of the meeting held on 21 July 2021 at 7.00 pm in Council Chamber,
Council Offices, Cecil Street, Margate, Kent.

1.

Present:

Councillor Michael Tomlinson (Chair); Councillors ColemanCooke, Albon, J Bayford, Crittenden, Fellows, Garner, Hart,
Hopkinson, Keen, Pat Moore, Wing and Wright.

In
Attendance:

Councillors Braidwood, Ashbee, Farrance, Gregory, Scott
and Shonk.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Rusiecki and Councillor
Paul Moore for whom Councillor Fellows was present as substitute.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillor Hart declared a significant interest in item 6B - 32 Shakespeare
Road, Birchington, Kent, noting that he and his partner owned and lived in the
property.

3.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
Clarification was sought regarding the wording of the agreed motion for item 4
– Land on the North west and South East Sides of Shottendane Road,
Margate. It was explained that the motion instructed officers to investigate
potential reasons for refusal of the application that could be considered by the
Committee before making its final decision. It was noted that it would have
been poor practice and unlawful to refuse the application before considering
this information, and without reasons at the point of refusal, as decisions must
be based upon evidence based reasoning.
Councillor Coleman-Cooke proposed, Councillor Hart seconded and Members
agreed that the minutes of the Planning Committee Meeting held on 23 June
2021 be approved and signed by the Chairman.

4.

PLANNING APPLICATION F/TH/20/0969
BUSINESS CENTRE, ADDINGTON PLACE.

-

ADDINGTON

HOUSE

PROPOSAL: Erection of 5No. 3 storey 3 bed and 1No. 3 storey 4 bed terraced
dwellings following demolition of existing offices, stores and laundry.
It was proposed by the Chair and seconded by the Vice-Chair:
‘THAT the officer’s recommendation be adopted, namely:

Page 5

Agenda Item 3
That the amended scheme be APPROVED subject to the following conditions,
that include updates to conditions 2 and 13:
1
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.
GROUND:
In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Purchase Act 2004).
2
The proposed development shall be carried out in accordance with the
submitted application as amended by the revised drawings numbered
04577_NB109 Rev C received 10 June 2021, 04577_NB103 Rev C,
04577_NB104 Rev D, 04577_NB105 Rev D and 04577_NB106 Rev C
received 09 December 2020.’
GROUND;
To secure the proper development of the area.
3
Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, a
scheme to address the issue of noise and odour which may affect residents
and will minimise the effects shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The proposal shall include:
- Acoustic glazing to all front facade windows and the rear elevation windows
to Plot 6.
- Air conditioning details to be agreed - unit to be acoustically treated, details
to be agreed.
GROUND:
In the interest of residential amenity for future occupants and in pursuance of
Policy QD03 of the Thanet Local Plan.
4
Prior to the commencement of any development on site details to
include the following shall be submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority and should be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.
(a) Routing of construction and delivery vehicles to / from site
(b) Parking and turning areas for construction and delivery vehicles and site
personnel
(c) Timing of deliveries
(d) Provision of wheel washing facilities
(e) Temporary traffic management / signage
(f) Measures to control noise affecting nearby residents
(g) Dust control measures
(h) Access arrangements
GROUND:

Page 6

Agenda Item 3
In the interests of highway safety and neighbouring amenity, in accordance
with Policy QD03 of the Thanet Local Plan and the advice contained within
the NPPF.
5
The external surfaces of the development hereby approved shall be
finished in accordance with the material schedule as annotated and illustrated
on the approved plans numbered 04577_NB103 Rev C and 4577_NB105 Rev
D received 09 December 2020.
GROUND;
To secure a satisfactory external treatment and to safeguard the special
character and appearance of the area as a Conservation Area in accordance
with Policies QD02 and HE02 of the Thanet Local Plan and advice contained
within the National Planning Policy Framework.
6
Prior to the construction of the external surfaces of the development
hereby approved samples of the proposed buff stock bricks and contrasting
red bricks and slate roof tiles to be used shall be submitted to, and approved
in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved samples unless otherwise agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.
GROUND;
To secure a satisfactory external treatment and to safeguard the special
character and appearance of the area as a Conservation Area in accordance
with Policies QD02 and HE02 of the Thanet Local Plan and advice contained
within the National Planning Policy Framework.
7
Prior to the construction of the external surfaces of the development
hereby approved a sample panel or sample area of the knapped flint walling
to the ground floor front elevations of the dwelling hereby approved shall be
submitted to, or inspected on site by the Conservation Officer and approved in
writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved samples unless otherwise agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.
GROUND;
To secure a satisfactory external treatment and to safeguard the special
character and appearance of the area as a Conservation Area in accordance
with Policies QD02 and HE02 of the Thanet Local Plan and advice contained
within the National Planning Policy Framework.
8
Prior to the construction of the external surfaces of the development
hereby approved the manufacturers details of the proposed aluminium framed
windows and doors shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the
Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with
the approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.
GROUND;

Page 7

Agenda Item 3
To secure a satisfactory external treatment and to safeguard the special
character and appearance of the area as a Conservation Area in accordance
with Policies QD02 and HE02 of the Thanet Local Plan and advice contained
within the National Planning Policy Framework.
9
All new window and door openings shall be set within a reveal of not
less than 100mm.
GROUND;
To secure a satisfactory external treatment and to safeguard the special
character and appearance of the area as a Conservation Area in accordance
with Policies QD02 and HE02 of the Thanet Local Plan and advice contained
within the National Planning Policy Framework.
10
Prior to the first occupation of the dwellings hereby approved, full
details of both hard and soft landscape works, to include
o species, size and location of new trees, shrubs, hedges and grassed
areas to be planted.
o the treatment proposed for all hard surfaced areas beyond the limits
of the highway.
o walls, fences, other means of enclosure proposed.
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning
Authority. All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details. The works shall be carried out prior to
the first occupation of the dwelling hereby approved. Any trees or plants which
within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are
removed or become seriously damaged or diseased, shall be replaced in the
next planting season with others of a similar size and species.
GROUND;
In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and to adequately integrate
the development into the environment in accordance with Policy QD02 of the
Thanet Local Plan.
11
The first and second floor front elevation windows of Plots 1-5 of the
terraced dwellings hereby approved shall be provided and maintained with
obscured glass to a minimum level of obscurity to conform to Pilkington Glass
level 4 or equivalent and shall be installed prior to first occupation of the
development hereby permitted and permanently retained thereafter.
GROUND:
To safeguard the residential amenities currently enjoyed by the occupiers of
nearby residential properties in accordance with Policy QD03 of the Thanet
Local Plan.
12
The refuse storage facilities and cycle storage facilities as specified
upon the approved drawings 04577_NB103 Rev C received 09 December
2020 and 04577_NB109 Rev B received 03 March 2021 and shall be

Page 8

Agenda Item 3
provided prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved and
shall be kept available for that use at all times.
GROUND:
To safeguard the residential amenities currently enjoyed by the occupiers of
nearby residential properties and in the interest of promoting cycling in
accordance with Policies QD03 and TP03 of the Thanet Local Plan.
13
The area shown on the approved plan numbered 04577_NB109 Rev C
received 10 June 2021 for vehicle parking and manoeuvring areas, which
includes the parking space to the rear of Plot 2 within the blue line, shall be
kept available for such use at all times and such land and access thereto shall
be provided prior to the first occupation of the dwellings hereby permitted.
GROUND:
To provide satisfactory off street parking for vehicles in accordance with
Policy TP06 of the Thanet Local Plan and the advice contained within the
NPPF
14
Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved,
details of the proposed footway as shown on approved plan numbered
04577_NB109 Rev B and the relocation of the existing 2No. street lights and
their proposed revised location shall be submitted to, and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority.
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details
prior to the occupation of any dwelling hereby approved and the footway shall
be thereafter retained in perpetuity.
GROUND:
In the interests of pedestrian and highway safety and amenity in accordance
with advice contained within the NPPF.
15
Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, the
applicant, or their agents or successors in title, shall secure the
implementation of a watching brief to be undertaken by an archaeologist
approved by the Local Planning Authority so that the excavation is observed
and items of interest and finds are recorded. The watching brief shall be in
accordance with a written programme and specification, which has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
GROUND:
To ensure that features of archaeological interest are properly examined and
recorded in accordance with Policy HE01 of the Thanet Local Plan and the
advice contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.
16
The development hereby permitted shall be constructed in order to
meet the required technical standard for water efficiency of
110litres/person/day, thereby Part G2 Part 36 (2b) of Schedule 1 Regulation
36 to the Building Regulations 2010, as amended, applies.
GROUND:

Page 9

Agenda Item 3
Thanet is within a water stress area as identified by the Environment Agency,
and therefore new developments will be expected to meet the water efficiency
optional requirement of 110litre.
17
The development hereby permitted shall be constructed to a high
standard of energy efficiency to the equivalent of Level 4 of the Code for
Sustainable Homes.
GROUND:
All new buildings and conversions of existing buildings must be designed to
reduce emissions of greenhouse gases and have resilience to function in a
changing climate, in accordance with Policy QD01 of the Thanet Local Plan.
18
All dwellings hereby permitted shall be provided with the ability for
connection to Superfast Fibre Optic Broadband 'fibre to the premises', where
there is adequate capacity.
GROUND:
To serve the future occupants of the development in accordance with Thanet
Local Plan Policy SP41 and the guidance within the National Planning Policy
Framework.’
Upon being put to the vote, the motion was declared LOST.

Councillor Albon proposed and Councillor J Bayford seconded, that the
application be deferred to officers to seek an amendment for additional
parking on the site and a reduction of one unit, with the application to be
brought back to Planning Committee for determination.
Upon being put to the vote, the motion was declared LOST.
Councillor Albon proposed and Councillor Wing seconded that the application
be REFUSED for the following reasons:
The proposed development would provide insufficient and unsatisfactory
parking provision upon the application site to serve the 6No. residential family
dwellings proposed, resulting in additional parking pressure in an area where
there is limited parking, resulting in harm to highway safety and highway
amenity, contrary to Policy TP06 of the Thanet Local Plan and paragraph 111
of the National Planning Policy Framework.
The proposed development, by virtue of its size, scale and layout, would
result in a cramped and congested form of development with limited open
space, which will fail to enhance the character and appearance of the
conservation area, to the detriment of the visual amenities of the area,
contrary to Policies QD02 and HE02 of the Thanet Local Plan, and
paragraphs 127 and 197 of the National Planning Policy Framework.
Upon being put to the vote, the motion was declared CARRIED.

Page 10

Agenda Item 3
5.

PLANNING APPLICATION OL/TH/20/0847 – LAND ON THE NORTH WEST
AND SOUTH EAST SIDES OF SHOTTENDANE ROAD, MARGATE
PROPOSAL: Outline application for the erection of up to 450 residential
dwellings (including market and affordable housing), structural planting and
landscaping, formal and informal public open space and children's play area,
sustainable urban drainage, with vehicular access points, including associated
ancillary works and operations, from Hartsdown Road, Shottendane Road and
Manston Road including access.
Councillor Braidwood spoke under council procedure rule 20.1.
Councillor Scott spoke under council procedure rule 20.1.
Councillor Gregory spoke as Ward Councillor.
Councillor Farrance spoke as Ward Councillor.
It was proposed by Councillor Albon and seconded by Councillor Hart that
Members agree option 4.1 from the report, namely that:
“Members REFUSE the application on the lack of sufficient affordable
housing, as outlined at paragraph 2.6 in the report:
2.6 The proposed development, by virtue of the proposed level of affordable
housing, would not meet the identified need for affordable housing in the
district, thereby not providing the required homes to create a balanced and
mixed community. This harm is considered to significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits of the development, therefore the proposal would not
constitute sustainable development and is contrary to Strategic Priority 3 of
the Thanet Local Plan and the objectives of the National Planning Policy
Framework.”
Upon being put to the vote, the motion was declared CARRIED.

6.

SCHEDULE OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS
(a)

A01 F/TH/21/0463
RAMSGATE.

-

Foresters

Arms,

48

Boundary

Road,

PROPOSAL: Erection of single storey, part first floor and part two storey rear
extensions, alterations to fenestration, formation of parking and garden to
rear, together with internal alterations, following partial demolition of 1-3 Alma
Road
Mr Oliver spoke in favour of the application.
Mrs Hankinson raised points of concern.
It was proposed by the Chair and seconded by the Vice-Chair:
‘THAT the officer’s recommendation be adopted, namely:

Page 11

Agenda Item 3
That the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions:
1
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.
GROUND:
In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Purchase Act 2004).
2
The proposed development shall be carried out in accordance with the
submitted application as amended by the revised drawing numbered BDG 539-3C
received 12 July 2021.
GROUND:
To secure the proper development of the area.
3
in:

The external surfaces of the development hereby approved shall be finished

Elevations - Painted render to match the colour, finish and texture of the existing
elevations
Roof to part two storey part first floor rear extension - Slate tiles to match the colour,
finish and texture of the existing roof tiles
Infilled door to western side elevation of side/rear extension - Flintwork to match the
colour, finish and texture of the adjacent flintwork section.
Windows and doors - UPVC double glazed
Double doors to front elevation - Composite doors
As annotated and illustrated on the approved plan numbered BDG 539-3C received
12 July 2021 and outlined in the submitted application form received 26 March 2021.
GROUND:
In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with Policy QD02 of the Thanet Local
Plan.
4
Prior to the construction of the external surfaces of the development hereby
approved details of the proposed flint work section to the infilled door opening to the
ground floor western side elevation hereby approved to match the adjacent flint work
section, shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
GROUND:
To secure a satisfactory external treatment in the interests of visual amenity in
accordance with Policy QD02 of the Thanet Local Plan.
5
The off-street parking and hardstanding to the rear shall be finished in water
permeable block pavers, as stated on the submitted application form received 26
March 2021.
GROUND:
In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and to adequately integrate the
development into the environment in accordance with Policies QD02 and GI04 of the
Thanet Local Plan.

Page 12

Agenda Item 3

6
The double doors to the ground floor front elevation hereby approved shall be
set within a reveal of not less than 100mm as confirmed in the email correspondence
from the agent received 12 July 2021.
GROUND:
In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with Policy QD02 of the Thanet Local
Plan.
7
The use of the rear garden associated with the Public House hereby
approved shall cease, and the gated access to the garden locked, daily at 21:30, as
annotated on the approved plan numbered BDG 539-3C received 12 July 2021.
GROUND:
To ensure that noise and activity is minimised in the interest of the residential
amenities of the area, in accordance with Policies QD02 and SE06 of the Thanet
Local Plan.
8
Prior to the first use of the parking spaces to the rear hereby permitted, the
associated vehicular crossover onto the highway, as shown on the approved plan
numbered BDG 539-3C received 12 July 2021, shall be completed and made
operational.
GROUND:
In the interests of highway safety, in accordance with the advice contained within the
NPPF.
9
The parking spaces hereby approved shall be a minimum of 4.8m long x 2.5m
wide as shown on the approved plan numbered BDG 539-3C received 12 July 2021.
GROUND:
To provide satisfactory off street parking for vehicles in accordance with Policy TP06
of the Thanet Local Plan and the advice contained within the NPPF.

Upon being put to the vote, the motion was declared CARRIED.
(b)

A02 FH/TH/21/0641 - 32 Shakespeare Road, BIRCHINGTON.

Following his declaration of interest, Councillor Hart left the meeting for
consideration of this item.
PROPOSAL: Erection of a single storey side extension with 3No rooflights
It was proposed by Councillor Albon, seconded by Councillor Coleman-Cooke
and Members agreed:
‘THAT the officer’s recommendation be adopted, namely:
That the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions:
1
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Page 13

Agenda Item 3

GROUND:
In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Purchase Act 2004).
2
The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance
with the submitted drawings numbered 2110-05A, 2110-06B, 2110-07B and
2110-08, received 14 May 2021.
GROUND;
To secure the proper development of the area.
3
The external materials and external finishes to be used in the
extensions hereby approved shall be of the same colour, finish and texture as
those on the existing property.
GROUND
In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with Policy QD02 of the
Thanet Local Plan
(c)

A03 FH/TH/21/0827 - 20 Avebury Avenue, RAMSGATE.

PROPOSAL: Erection of porch to front elevation.
It was proposed by Councillor Albon, seconded by Councillor Coleman-Cooke
and Members agreed:
‘THAT the officer’s recommendation be adopted, namely:
That the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions:
1
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.
GROUND:
In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Purchase Act 2004).
2
The proposed development shall be carried out in accordance with the
submitted application and the approved drawing numbered 886-1.
GROUND
To secure the proper development of the area.
3
The external materials and external finishes to be used in the porch
hereby approved shall be of the same colour, finish and texture as those on
the existing property.
GROUND
In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with Policy QD02 of the
Thanet Local Plan.

Page 14

Agenda Item 3
(d)

D04 F/TH/21/0710 - 49 St Peters Court, BROADSTAIRS.

PROPOSAL: Erection of single storey 2-bed detached dwelling together with
creation of vehicular access.
Mr Brown spoke in favour of the application.
It was proposed by the Chair and seconded by the Vice-Chair:
‘To DEFER AND DELEGATE for approval subject to the satisfactory
completion of unilateral undertaking within 6 months securing the required
planning obligations as set out in the report and the following conditions:
1
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.
GROUND:
In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Purchase Act 2004).
2
The proposed development shall be carried out in accordance with the
submitted application as amended by the revised drawings numbered 495PC-P01A,
495PC-P02A, 495PC-P03A, 495PC-P04A received 24, June 2021.
GROUND;
To secure the proper development of the area.
3
The brickwork, roof tiles and cladding hereby permitted shall be constructed
using materials to match number 49 St Peters Court in accordance with the amended
plan numbered 49SPC-P03A.
GROUND;
In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with Policy QD02 of the Thanet Local
Plan
4
The development hereby permitted shall be constructed to a high standard of
energy efficiency to the equivalent of Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes.
GROUND;
All new buildings and conversions of existing buildings must be designed to reduce
emissions of greenhouse gases and have resilience to function in a changing
climate, in accordance with Policy QD01 of the Thanet Local Plan.
5
The development hereby permitted shall be constructed in order to meet the
required technical standard for water efficiency of 110litres/person/day, thereby Part
G2 Part 36 (2b) of Schedule 1 Regulation 36 to the Building Regulations 2010, as
amended, applies.
GROUND;
Thanet is within a water stress area as identified by the Environment Agency, and
therefore new developments will be expected to meet the water efficiency optional
requirement of 110litre /person/day, in accordance with Policy QD04 of the Thanet
Local Plan.

Page 15

Agenda Item 3
Upon being put to the vote, the motion was declared CARRIED.

Meeting concluded : 9.30 pm

Page 16

Agenda Item 4
THANET DISTRICT COUNCIL
PLANNING COMMITTEE
18th AUGUST 2021
BACKGROUND PAPERS TO SCHEDULE OF APPLICATIONS
The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England)
Regulations 2000 (as amended)
(A)

Standard Reference Documents - (available for inspection at the Council
offices and via thanet.gov.uk and gov.uk)
1.
2.
3.
4.

(B)

Thanet District Council Local Plan
Cliftonville Development Plan Document
Broadstairs and St Peters Neighbourhood Plan
The National Planning Policy Framework and the National Planning
Practice Guidance issued by the Ministry of Housing, Communities
and Local Government.

Register of Applications for Planning Permission (Article 40 of the Town and
Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order
2015))
(Copy of applications together with accompanying plans or drawings are
available
for
inspection
via
the
Council’s
website
https://planning.thanet.gov.uk/online-applications/ or at the Council offices)

(C)

Background Papers in relation to specific reports in the Schedule of Planning
Applications
(Copies of background papers and any appeal decisions referred to are
available
via
the
Council’s
website
https://planning.thanet.gov.uk/online-applications/ )
I certify that the above items are not exempt information.

(D)

Exempt information in accordance with paragraph of Schedule 12 (A) of the
Local Government Act 1972.
N/A

I certify that the above items are exempt information.
Prepared by:

IAIN LIVINGSTONE

SIGNED:.

DATE:9TH JULY 2021
Proper Officer

Page 17

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
THANET DISTRICT COUNCIL
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES
PART A
TO: THE PLANNING COMMITTEE
Application Number
A01 FH/TH/21/0926

DATE: 18 August 2021

Address and Details

Recommendation

25A Edith Road RAMSGATE Kent
CT11 0EN

Approve

Retrospective application for the
erection of a single storey side
extension for garage
Ward: Nethercourt

Page 19

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
THANET DISTRICT COUNCIL
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES
PART B
TO: THE PLANNING COMMITTEE
Application Number
R02 F/TH/21/0566

DATE: 18 August 2021

Address and Details

Recommendation

Ozengell Farmhouse Haine Road
RAMSGATE Kent CT12 5ER

Refuse Permission

Erection of 2no. 2-storey 3-bed and
4no. 4-bed dwellings with associated
parking and landscaping following
demolition of existing buildings
Ward: Thanet Villages

Page 20

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
THANET DISTRICT COUNCIL
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES
PART C
TO: THE PLANNING COMMITTEE
Application Number
D03 F/TH/21/0064

DATE: 18 August 2021

Address and Details
Land Adjacent To 2 Shah Place
RAMSGATE Kent

Recommendation
Defer & Delegate

Erection of three and two storey
building containg 3No. 1bed residential
dwellings
Ward: Central Harbour

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4a
A01

FH/TH/21/0926

PROPOSAL:

Retrospective application for the erection of a single storey side
extension for garage

LOCATION:
25A Edith Road RAMSGATE Kent CT11 0EN
WARD:

Nethercourt

AGENT:

Mr Mark Staples

APPLICANT:

Mr G Cornford

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve

Subject to the following conditions:

1

The proposed development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted
application and the approved plans numbered: 771C/PL/101, 771C/PL/102,
771C/PL/103, 771C/PL/104 received by the Local Planning Authority on 9th June
2021.
GROUND:
To secure the proper development of the area.

2

The external materials and external finishes to be used in the garage hereby
approved shall be of the same colour, finish and texture as those on the existing
property.
GROUND:
In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with Policy QD02 of the Thanet Local
Plan.

INFORMATIVES
Please be aware that obtaining planning permission and complying with building regulations
are separate matters - please contact building control on 01843 577522 for advice on
building regulations

SITE, LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION
The application site lies within the urban confines, in a wholly residential area, on the
northern side of Edith Road, to the rear of No's 19-25 Edith Road.

Page 23

Agenda Item 4a
The site comprises a detached single storey dwelling which is set back from the public
highway and accessed via a private driveway running between No's 25 and 27 Edith Road,
secured by residential metal gates. The dwelling benefits from off street parking and private
amenity space.
The application property was converted to a dwelling at the same time as No's 23 and 25
Edith Road were constructed, which are a pair of three storey dwellings.
PLANNING HISTORY
The most recent site history is a follows:
F/TH/14/0324 - Retrospective application for the erection of an outbuilding - granted
18/09/2014.
F/TH/00/0447 - Erection of a pair of semi-detached houses and conversion of existing
factory to a single dwelling - granted 09/02/2001.
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT
Planning permission is sought for the erection of a single storey, pitched roof garage to the
front elevation of the dwelling. Works have begun but are not yet complete.
The proposed garage would have a width of approximately 3.7 metres, length of
approximately 6.5 metres, eaves height of approximately 2.69 metres and a ridge height of
approximately 4.2 metres.
There would be access to the proposed attached garage from the main dwelling via the
existing front door of the dwelling. A traditional up and over metal garage door is proposed to
the front elevation of the development together with a door within the rear elevation,
providing access to a terrace area and the insertion of a window within the side elevation
facing onto the existing front elevation of the dwelling.
The scheme involves some alterations to fenestration at ground floor level within the main
dwelling comprising the replacement of a window with doors to the eastern elevation
allowing access to a new terrace area. A window serving the existing entrance hall would be
replaced with a door providing a new main access to the dwelling.
The application proposes materials in keeping with the existing dwelling, comprising a render
finish to the walls, roof tiles and upvc openings.

PLANNING POLICIES
Thanet Local Plan 2020
SP35 - Quality Development
QD02 - General Design Principles

Page 24

Agenda Item 4a
QD03 - Living Conditions
TP06 - Car Parking
NOTIFICATIONS
Letters were sent to neighbouring occupiers and a site notice was posted near the site. One
objection has been received in response, raising the following concerns:
-

Permitted development rights have been withdrawn and works are unauthorised
Loss of privacy, loss of amenity, loss of natural light and overshadowing of
neighbouring garden
Noise and disturbance created by new yard area
Works involving boundary walls

Ramsgate Town Council: make no comment.
CONSULTATIONS
No consultations were carried out.
COMMENTS
The application has been called to the planning committee at the request of Councillor
Ovenden for Members to consider the potential impact on neighbouring properties.
The main considerations with regards to this planning application are the principle of the
proposed development, the impact of the proposal upon the character and appearance of
the area, the impact on living conditions of neighbouring property occupiers and highway
safety.
Principle of Development
In line with Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2014, planning
decisions must be taken in accordance with the 'development plan' unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. The requirements of the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) are a significant material consideration in this regard.
The site is located within the urban confines and therefore the principle of householder
development is considered acceptable, subject to the assessment of material
considerations.
Character and Appearance
In terms of character and appearance, paragraph 130 of the NPPF states that decisions
should ensure that developments will function well and add to the overall quality of the area,
are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and effective
landscaping, are sympathetic to local character and history, establish or maintain a strong

Page 25

Agenda Item 4a
sense of place, optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate
amount and mix of development and create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible.
Thanet Local Plan Policy QD02 relates to general design principles and outlines that the
primary planning aim in all new development is to promote or reinforce the local character of
the area and provide high quality and inclusive design that is sustainable in all other
respects. Proposals must relate to the surrounding development in terms of its form and
layout, be well designed, respect and enhance the character of the area paying particular
attention to context and identity of its location, scale, massing, rhythm, density, layout, use of
materials appropriate to the locality, be compatible with neighbouring buildings and spaces.
Due to its positioning, set back approximately 27 metres from the public highway, with
limited views available between No's 25 and 27 Edith Road and an element of screening
provided by the existing gates, the proposed development would not be highly visible from
public vantage points. The scale and design of the proposed garage are in keeping with the
main dwelling, resulting in a subservient addition which respects the character of the host
dwelling. I note that materials are proposed to match those existing which would serve to
further reduce any visual impact.
It is therefore considered that the proposed development would not result in material harm to
the streetscene or wider character and appearance of the area and therefore accords with
Policies SP35 and QD02 of the Thanet Local Plan and the NPPF.
Living Conditions
In terms of living conditions, paragraph 119 of the NPPF outlines that planning decisions
should promote an effective use of land in meeting the need for homes and other uses, while
safeguarding and improving the environment and ensuring safe and healthy living
conditions. Paragraph 130 of the NPPF states that decisions should ensure that
developments create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote
health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users.
Policy QD02 of the Thanet Local Plan outlines that new development must be compatible
with neighbouring buildings and spaces and inclusive in its design for all users. It should
improve people's quality of life by creating safe and accessible environments and promote
public safety and security. Thanet Local Plan Policy QD03 states that new development
must not lead to unacceptable living conditions through overlooking, noise or vibration, light
pollution, overshadowing, loss of natural light or sense of enclosure.
The proposed single storey garage would be built up to the boundary with No. 27 Edith
Road, towards the furthest end of this neighbouring rear garden. I note that the proposed
development would pitch away from the neighbouring property and No. 27 Edith Road
benefits from an outbuilding which runs alongside the shared boundary adjacent to the siting
of the proposed garage. Having regard to the scale of the proposed development and
position of openings, the height of the shared boundary treatment and relationship with the
built form of this neighbouring property, it is not considered that the scheme would result in
material harm to the living conditions of these neighbouring property occupiers.

Page 26

Agenda Item 4a
There would be a distance of approximately 2.7 metres between the rear elevation of the
proposed garage and the rear boundary of No. 26 Southwood Gardens. Having regards to
the height and design of the proposed development, existing boundary treatment and
separation distance with this neighbouring property, it is not considered that the scheme
would result in an unacceptable level of overlooking, loss of privacy, loss of light or
overshadowing to the property or amenity space of these neighbouring property occupiers.
The proposed door within the side elevation would overlook the driveway and parking area
and given its ground floor position would not result in a loss of privacy for the neighbouring
occupiers of No 25 Edith Road.
The new terrace area created to the rear of the proposed garage would not be raised and as
such does not require planning permission. There is nothing to suggest that the use of this
area as private amenity space would give rise to an unacceptable level of noise or
disturbance. Excessive noise in residential locations is covered by separate Environmental
Health Legislation.
For these reasons it is not considered that the proposal would adversely affect the living
conditions of neighbouring property occupiers and therefore accords with Policies QD02 and
QD03 of the Thanet Local Plan and the NPPF.
Highway Safety
The scheme proposes the erection of a single storey garage which would be attached to the
existing front elevation of the dwelling and set back a significant distance from the public
highway. I note that an area of hardstanding for car parking and adequate space for
manoeuvring would be retained. Having regards to the nature of the development proposed
it is not considered that there would be a material increase in vehicle movements to and
from the site or demand for car parking.
For these reasons, it is not considered that the proposed development would result in harm
to highway safety or amenity.
Other Matters
Concern has been raised with regards to works that have taken place to a boundary wall
within the site. The agent confirms that the work has involved repair to a shared boundary
wall; which has involved no increase in height and has been undertaken in collaboration with
the neighbour.
Permitted development rights have been removed under permission reference
F/TH/00/0447. The removal of permitted development rights does not prevent future
development taking place, it necessitates a planning application in order that any potential
impacts can be fully assessed. It is not a criminal offence for a homeowner of a dwelling
which is not a listed building to undertake works prior to submitting a planning application;
however they do so at their own risk.

Page 27

Agenda Item 4a
The submitted application declares that all of the land utilised for the proposed development
is within the control of the applicant. Development which involves building up to or on to a
shared boundary wall is subject to party wall agreement and as such separate to planning
legislation.
Conclusion
For the reasons outlined above, it is considered that the principle of the proposed
development is acceptable, whilst no material harm would be caused to the character or
appearance of the area, the residential amenities of neighbouring property occupiers or the
local highway network. The proposal therefore accords with Policies SP35, QD02, QD03 and
TP06 of the Thanet Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.
It is therefore recommended that Members approve the application.

Case Officer
Tanya Carr

Page 28

Agenda Item 4a
TITLE:

FH/TH/21/0926

Project

25A Edith Road RAMSGATE Kent CT11 0EN

Scale:

Page 29

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4b
R02

F/TH/21/0566

PROPOSAL:

Erection of 2no. 2-storey 3-bed and 4no. 4-bed dwellings with
associated parking and landscaping following demolition of
existing buildings

LOCATION:

Ozengell Farmhouse Haine Road RAMSGATE Kent CT12 5ER
WARD:

Thanet Villages

AGENT:

TaylorHare Architects Ltd

APPLICANT:

Mont Blanc Developments Ltd

RECOMMENDATION:

Refuse Permission

For the following reasons:
1

The proposed development, due to the lack of a footway link along this part of Haine
Road which is partly unlit and subject to the national speed limit of the road, would
result in conflict between pedestrians/cyclists and users of the highway, resulting in
an unsustainable development due to future occupiers being dependant on private
vehicles and an unacceptable impact on highway safety. The development would,
therefore, be contrary to policies SP43, QD01, QD02, TP02 and TP03 of the Thanet
Local Plan and paragraphs 110, 111 and 112 of the National Planning Policy
Framework.

SITE, LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION
The application site lies to the west of Haine Road The site is currently occupied by a single
dwelling (Ozengell Farmhouse) which is vacant and fire damaged with the remainder clear of
development, but largely overgrown. There is an unlit and un surfaced bridleway bordering
the site to the south, with agricultural fields to the north and west of the site. The buildings
on the eastern side of Haine Road include two Listed buildings (Ozengell Grange (Grade II),
a house dating from 1711 of red brick construction with a clay tiled roof, and a tithe barn
(Grade II*) dating from the late 14th or early 15th century. The barn is an oak frame
construction, with a flint base and weatherboard elevations. These buildings are largely
shielded from view by mature tree belts. From historic images of the application site it
appears that it was covered by a number of mature trees including a tree belt to its Haine
Road frontage which allowed limited views into the site. Prior to the previous planning
application being submitted a number of trees within the site have been removed including
those fronting Haine Road. The rear and sides of the application site still benefit from tree
belts.

Page 31

Agenda Item 4b
RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
F/TH/19/0345 - Erection of 4No 4 Bed and 2 No 3 Bed dwellings following demolition of
existing dwelling and outbuilding. Refused 8th August 2019. Appeal dismissed 29th
December 2020. This appeal is appended to this report at Annex A.
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT
This application seeks planning permission for residential redevelopment of the site with
2no. 3 bedroom dwellings and 4 no. 4 bed dwellings following the demolition of the existing
dwelling and attached outbuilding.
Each of the dwellings would be two storey and served by private amenity areas and parking
spaces. The dwellings have been designed to take inspiration from the surrounding area,
including the existing dwelling, but do not seek to create a pastiche. Materials proposed
include brick, timber cladding and zinc roofs and detailing.
Access to the development would be taken from the existing access to the site from Haine
Road and a footway would be provided along the frontage of the site with Haine Road.
DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES
Thanet Local Plan 2020
SP01 - Spatial Strategy - Housing
SP11 - Ramsgate
SP14 - General Housing Policy
SP15 - Strategic Housing Sites - Manston Green
SP22 - Type and Size of Dwellings
SP29 - Strategic Access Management and Monitoring Plan (SAMM)
SP30 - Biodiversity and Geodiversity Assets
SP35 - Quality Development
SP36 - Conservation and Enhancement of Thanet's Historic Environment
SP37 - Climate Change
SP43 - Safe and Sustainable Access
SP44 - Accessible Locations
H01 - Housing Development
GI04 - Amenity Green Space and Equipped Play Areas
QD01 - Sustainable Development
QD02 - General Design Policies
QD03 - Living Conditions
QD04 - Technical Standards
HE01 - Archaeology
HE03 - Heritage Assets
CC02 - Surface Water Management
SE04 - Groundwater Protection
TP01 - Transport Assessment and Travel Plans
TP02 - Walking

Page 32

Agenda Item 4b
TP03 - Cycling
TP06 - Car Parking
NOTIFICATIONS
Consultations were sent to adjoining occupiers, a site notice posted close to the site and the
application publicies in a local newspaper. No representations have been received.
British Horse Society: "Nationally, equestrians are limited to just 22% of the rights of way
network nationally (significantly less for carriage drivers) and even this figure is somewhat
misleading as much of it is fragmented, resulting in dead-end bridleways or restricted
byways. In Kent, the figure is even lower at just 16.6%. As such any negative impact on
these limited resources for development purposes is to be strongly opposed.
We note that bridleway TR10 borders the southern boundary of this proposed development.
In the event that the council is minded to approve this planning application, we ask that a
condition of the planning is to ensure that the path is maintained open and accessible during
all works and that it should not be used for vehicular access nor as a place to store materials
before, during or after the development is constructed. Fencing to the boundary of the
development should not encroach on the width of the bridleway and a usable width of 3
metres should be maintained."
CONSULTATIONS
Natural England: With regard to European Sites, Natural England does not object to the
granting of this permission subject to the advice given below.
Natural England advises that the specific measures previously identified and analysed by
your Authority to prevent harmful effects on coastal European Sites from increased
recreational pressure should be applied to this proposed development at appropriate
assessment.
Your authority has measures in place to manage these potential impacts through the agreed
strategic solution which we consider to be ecologically sound. Natural England is of the view
that if these measures, including contributions to them, are implemented, they will be
effective and reliable in preventing harmful effects on the European Site(s) for the duration of
the proposed development.
Providing that the appropriate assessment concludes that these measures must be secured
as planning conditions or obligations by your authority to ensure their strict implementation
for the full duration of the development, and providing that there are no other adverse
impacts identified by your authority's appropriate assessment, Natural England is satisfied
that this appropriate assessment can ascertain that there will be no adverse effect on the
integrity of the European Site in view of its conservation objectives
Southern Water: Southern Water records show the approximate position of water
distribution main in the immediate vicinity of the development site. The exact position of the

Page 33

Agenda Item 4b
public assets must be determined on site by the applicant in consultation with Southern
Water, before the layout of the proposed development is finalised.
- The 9 inches water distribution main requires a clearance of 6 metres on either side of the
water main to protect it from construction works and to allow for future access for
maintenance.
- No excavation, mounding or tree planting should be carried out within 6 metres of the
external edge
of the public water distribution main without consent from Southern Water.
- No new soakaways, swales, ponds, watercourses or any other surface water retaining or
conveying features should be located within 5 metres of a public water distribution main.
- All existing infrastructure, including protective coatings and cathodic protection, should be
protected during the course of the construction works.
We have restrictions on the proposed tree planting adjacent to Southern Water sewers,
rising mains or water mains and any such proposed assets in the vicinity of existing planting.
Reference should be made to Southern Water's publication "A Guide to Tree Planting near
water Mains and Sewers"
(southernwater.co.uk/media/3027/ds-tree-planting-guide.pdf) and the Sewerage Sector
Guidance (water.org.uk/sewerage-sector-guidance-approved-documents)
with regards to any landscaping proposals and our restrictions and maintenance of tree
planting adjacent to sewers, rising mains and water mains.
It is possible that a sewer now deemed to be public could be crossing the development site.
Therefore, should any sewer be found during construction works, an investigation of the
sewer will be required to ascertain its ownership before any further works commence on site.
In order to protect water supply apparatus, Southern Water requests that if consent is
granted, a condition is attached to the planning permission. For example, "The developer
must agree with Southern Water, prior to commencement of the development, the measures
to be undertaken to protect the public water supply main."
The applicant has not stated details of means of disposal of foul drainage from the site.
Southern Water requires a formal application for a connection to the public foul sewer to be
made by the applicant or developer.
The planning application form makes reference to drainage using Sustainable Drainage
Systems (SuDS). Under certain circumstances SuDS will be adopted by Southern Water
should this be requested by the developer.
Where SuDS rely upon facilities which are not adoptable by sewerage undertakers the
applicant will need to ensure that arrangements exist for the long-term maintenance of the
SuDS facilities. It is critical that the effectiveness of these systems is maintained in
perpetuity. Good management will avoid flooding from the proposed surface water system,
which may result in the inundation of the foul sewerage system.

Page 34

Agenda Item 4b
Thus, where a SuDS scheme is to be implemented, the drainage details submitted to the
Local
Planning Authority should:
- Specify the responsibilities of each party for the implementation of the SuDS scheme.
- Specify a timetable for implementation.
- Provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development.
This should include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory
undertaker and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its
lifetime.
We request that should this planning application receive planning approval, the following
informative is attached to the consent: Construction of the development shall not commence
until details of the proposed means of foul sewerage and surface water disposal have been
submitted to, and approved, in writing by, the Local Planning Authority in consultation with
Southern Water.
This initial assessment does not prejudice any future assessment or commit to any adoption
agreements under Section 104 of the Water Industry Act 1991. Please note that noncompliance with Sewers for Adoption standards will preclude future adoption of the foul and
surface water sewerage network on site. The design of drainage should ensure that no
groundwater or land drainage to enter public sewers
The proposed development would lie within a Source Protection Zone. The applicant will
need to consult with the Environment Agency to ensure the protection of the public water
supply source is maintained and inform Southern Water of the outcome of this consultation.
KCC Flood and Water Management: No comment.
KCC Biodiversity: We have reviewed the information in support of this application and
advise that sufficient information has been provided to determine the planning application.
However, we note that any future application at this site will require an updated ecological
assessment as the submitted preliminary ecological appraisal is almost out-of-date (in
alignment with CIEEM guidance).
Designated Sites - The development includes proposals for new dwellings within the zone of
influence (7.2km) of the Thanet Coast and Sandwich Bay Special Protection Area (SPA) and
Wetland of International Importance under the Ramsar Convention (Ramsar Site).
Therefore, Thanet District Council will need to ensure that the proposals fully adhere to the
agreed approach within the Strategic Access Management and Monitoring Strategy
(SAMMS) to mitigate for additional recreational impacts on the designated sites and to
ensure that adequate means are in place to secure the mitigation before first occupation.
A recent decision from the Court of Justice of the European Union has detailed that
mitigation measures cannot be taken into account when carrying out a screening
assessment to decide whether a full 'appropriate assessment' is needed under the Habitats
Directive. Therefore, we advise that due to the need for the application to contribute to the
SAMMS, there is a need for an appropriate assessment to be carried out as part of this
application.

Page 35

Agenda Item 4b

Breeding Bird Informative - Habitats are present on and around the site that provide
opportunities for breeding birds. Any work to vegetation that may provide suitable nesting
habitats should be carried out outside of the bird breeding season (March to August) to avoid
destroying or damaging bird nests in use or being built. If vegetation needs to be removed
during the breeding season, mitigation measures need to be implemented during
construction in order to protect breeding birds. This includes examination by an experienced
ecologist prior to starting work and if any nesting birds are found, development must cease
until after the juveniles have fledged. We suggest the following informative is included with
any planning consent:
The applicant is reminded that, under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as amended
(section 1), it is an offence to remove, damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird while that
nest is in use or being built. Planning consent for a development does not provide a defence
against prosecution under this Act. Breeding bird habitat is present on the application site
and assumed to contain nesting birds between 1st March and 31st August, unless a recent
survey has been undertaken by a competent ecologist and has shown that nesting birds are
not present.
Ecological Enhancement - Under section 40 of the NERC Act (2006), and the NPPF ,
biodiversity must be maintained and enhanced through the planning system. Additionally,
the implementation of enhancements for biodiversity should be encouraged.
The ecology report recommends enhancements which are appropriate for the development.
As such, we advise that a condition is attached to planning permission, if granted, to secure
the implementation of enhancements.
Suggested wording:
Prior to the completion of the development hereby approved, details of how the development
will enhance biodiversity will be submitted to, and approved by, the local planning authority.
This will include the incorporation of recommendations within section 4.10 of the Preliminary
Ecological Appraisal (KB Ecology December 2018). The approved details will be
implemented and thereafter retained.
KCC Highways: "I refer to the above planning application and confirmation of the status of
the site. I note the site is not connected to the existing footway network, requiring
pedestrians to walk in the carriageway in Haine Road and Manston Road to reach the
nearest bus stops and other services/amenities in the area. Haine Road in the vicinity of the
site is an unlit, busy 'A' road with measured speeds in excess of 40 mph and its use by
pedestrians is therefore likely to create hazards for users of the highway.
The proposals therefore do not provide safe access, contrary to the NPPF, and I would
recommend refusal on this basis.
With regard to the Manston Green development there is still no guarantee that the
development will be built out and Haine Road downgraded and improved as envisaged,
even if there are time limits on reserved matters. This naturally also applies to the provision
of alternative pedestrian and cycle routes through Phase 1 to Manston Road and the

Page 36

Agenda Item 4b
improvements to public bridleway TR10. Our comments on the reserved matters approval for
Phase 1 included the need to completely close off the connections shown to Haine Road
until such time as later phases provide suitable improvements to allow users to safely cross
the same. The current application site could therefore be occupied before the alternative
pedestrian and cycle connections to Manston Road, and Haine Road
downgrade/improvements, are in place.
Whilst bridleway TR10 is immediately to the south of the site, this bridleway is unpaved, unlit
and not overlooked. The walking distance to the bus stops in Manston High Street is
approximately 1400 metres. The walking route to the nearest bus stops in Haine Road/St
John's Avenue to the north is approximately 800 metres long and approximately 200 metres
of it is on a dedicated footway (this would increase to approximately 300 metres with the
development immediately to the south of Spratling Lane). The bus services in Haine Road/St
John's Avenue are more frequent than those through Manston and provide far less circuitous
routes to Westwood Cross, Margate and Ramsgate. The nearest facilities such as schools,
doctors' surgery and food store are to the east of the site off Manston Road and to the north
off New Haine Road. Pedestrians are therefore far more likely to try and walk along Haine
Road than they are to use the bridleway to the west.
I note the proposals are essentially the same as those dismissed on appeal under reference
APP/Z2260/W/19/3243926 (application reference F/TH/19/0345). The appeal Inspector
confirmed that the proposals would be contrary to national and LP policies that identify safe
and convenient movement by pedestrians as an important priority for new development."
Contaminated Land Officer: Further to review of the desk study report (Ref.
19/11522/DG/GO, Albury SI, March 2019) submitted in connection with this application. I can
confirm that further intrusive investigation is required to assess the risks from potential
identified sources of contamination (including potential infilled old quarry, made ground,
ACMs and full metals suite)from former site uses. As such recommend that condition
relating to unexpected contamination and Site Characterisation and Remediation be
attached to any planning consent to safeguard the development
COMMENTS
This application has been called to committee by Cllr Pugh for Members to weigh up the
increased risk of fly tipping and difficulties securing the site against the lack of pedestrian
access to the proposed development, especially in the light of the Manston Green
progressing.
Principle
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that all planning
applications must be determined in accordance with the Development Plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.
The application site is part previously developed land (the part with the existing buildings)
and part non previously developed land (the rest of the site). At the time the previous
application was considered the site was outside of any defined settlement and considered to

Page 37

Agenda Item 4b
be in the countryside for planning purposes. Since the adoption of the new Local Plan the
site now lies within the urban area. Policy SP01 of the Local Plan (Spatial Strategy Housing) states that the primary focus for new housing development in Thanet is the urban
area.
Policy H01 (Housing Development) states that permission for new housing
development will be granted on sites allocated for this purpose and on non allocated sites
within the confines of the urban area and villages.
At the current time, the District Council has not met its Housing Delivery test. Consequently,
the Council's policy SP01, which focuses housing development within the urban area, is
considered out-of-date and the weight attached to this policy is limited. In accordance with
paragraph 11 of the NPPF, applications for housing should be considered in the context of
the presumption in favour of sustainable development. Paragraph 11 of the NPPF describes
the presumption in favour of sustainable development and closes by saying that where
development plan policies are out of date, planning permission should be granted "unless
any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits,
when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole or specific policies
in this Framework indicate development should be refused".
The application site is not allocated for development in the Local Plan, but it is surrounded
by a Strategic Housing Allocation (SP15) known as Manston Green for up to 785 dwellings.
Outline planning consent with all matters except access reserved for future consideration
was granted for Manston Green in October 2019 (OL/TH/14/0050 refers) and a reserved
matters application for phase 1 of the larger site in October 2019 (R/TH/19/0499 refers,
covering 220 dwellings) which must have commenced works by October 2021 to remain
extant. Reserved matters applications have been submitted for 2 further phases of the
larger site (2 and 3), but these are currently invalid (R/TH/21/0499 and R/TH/21/1109).
Given that the Council has failed the Housing delivery test, the fact that in the new Local
Plan the site now lies within the urban area, that there would be some social and economic
benefits from the provision of the dwellings towards the NPPF's aims of sustainability and
the fact that they would make a contribution to the District's housing supply (albeit a minor
one), the principle of housing development on the site is considered acceptable.
Character and Appearance
The application site is surrounded by the allocated Manston Green site, which would mean
that once the adjacent development is built out, the impact on the wider landscape from the
proposed development would be limited. . It is, however, recognised that any development
on the application site is likely to come forward prior to a significant number of dwellings on
the Manston Green site. As such, it is appropriate to consider whether the impact of the
proposed development on the character and appearance of the area would be acceptable as
a stand alone development.
-

Design

Paragraph 130 of the NPPF states decisions should ensure that developments will function
well and add to the overall quality of the area, are visually attractive as a result of good
architecture, layout and appropriate and effective landscaping, sympathetic to local

Page 38

Agenda Item 4b
character and history, establish or maintain a strong sense of place, and optimise the
potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount and mix of
development and create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible. Policy QD02 of the
Thanet Local Plan outlines that the primary aim of new development is to promote or
reinforce local character and provide high quality and inclusive design that is sustainable in
all other respects. Proposals should therefore relate to surrounding development, form and
layout, be well designed, pay particular attention to context and identity of location, scale,
massing, rhythm, density, layout and materials, and be compatible with neighbouring
buildings and spaces. Any external spaces and landscape features should be designed as
an integral part of the scheme.
The application proposes the demolition of the existing building on the site and the erection
of 6 two storey dwellings on the site. It is proposed that they would be laid out to resemble a
farmyard courtyard of buildings with access taken from the existing site access. Steeply
pitched roofs and pronounced gables would be features of the proposed dwellings and
materials would include stock bricks, timber cladding and zinc for the roofs. A proposed
landscaping scheme has been submitted by the applicant which shows the retention of the
existing trees to the rear of the site as well as new tree planting introduced within the site
and along the frontage of the site with Haine Road. It is considered that the proposed
development would be low density and with the existing and proposed planting could largely
be sheltered from longer views. The scale of the development would not appear
incongruous when surrounded by the landscaping and the development would sit
comfortably within the context of the buildings opposite, not appearing out of keeping with
the form and pattern of development in the area..
It would be considered appropriate to secure samples of the proposed materials for the
proposed dwellings and boundary treatments as well as securing the planting and retention
of the landscaping should consent be granted.
-

Loss of existing building

Paragraph 194 of the NPPF states that in determining applications, Local Planning
Authorities should require an applicant to describe the significance of any heritage assets
affected, including any contribution made by their setting. The level of detail should be
proportionate to the assets' importance and no more than sufficient to understand the
potential impact of the proposal on their significance. Local Planning Authorities should
identify and assess the particular significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by
a proposal (paragraph 195). The effect of a proposal on the significance of a non
designated heritage asset should be taken into account in determining the application. In
weighing applications that directly or indirectly affect non designated heritage assets, a
balanced judgement will be required having regard to the scale of any harm or loss and the
significance of the heritage asset (paragraph 201). Local Planning Authorities should not
permit the loss of the whole or part of a heritage asset without taking all reasonable steps to
ensure the new development will proceed after the loss has occurred (paragraph 204).
The existing dwelling on the site is not listed in its own right and, whilst it is considered that
there may have been some historic links with the farmstead on the eastern side of Haine
Road, any functional link with that site has clearly been lost and given the strong separation

Page 39

Agenda Item 4b
created between the two sites via Haine Road (which has been in place for a number of
years) it is not considered by officers that the building is curtilage listed. It is, however,
considered by Officers to be a non designated heritage asset. Paragraph 197 of the NPPF
is, therefore, relevant. The proposal would see the demolition of the existing building ie. the
total loss of the non designated heritage asset. In this instance the current condition of the
building with its extensive fire damage is noted and, given the contribution the proposed
development would make to the housing stock with the district and the public benefits
associated with this, it is considered that the loss of the non designated heritage asset could
be accepted.
Therefore taking into account the design of the proposal and the loss of the existing building,
the proposal is considered to be acceptable in terms of the character and appearance of the
area, in accordance with Policies QD02 and HE03 of the Thanet Local Plan and the National
Planning Policy Framework.
-

Condition of site

The Planning Statement submitted in support of the application draws attention to the
"deleterious condition of the site, including both the farm house and the wider site" and
advises that the site attracts fly tipping and vandalism. It also draws attention to the
correspondence received in relation to the existing farmhouse from the Council's Empty
Property Officer who seeks to engage with the owners of homes believed to be empty with
the aim of bringing them back into use.
This issue was addressed by the Inspector when determining the appeal against the
previous refusal, concluding that "the existing site is in poor condition and subject to
dumping, but that is the responsibility of the landowner and there is nothing to prevent it
being made secure." The Planning Statement makes reference to this comment in the
appeal decision and advises that due to the dangerous condition of the site, the only option
available to secure the site would be the erection of 2.4m high hoardings which would
require a grant of planning permission.
It is noted that a grant of planning permission for residential development on the site is not
the only means of securing the site against vandalism and fly tipping. It is not clear why the
applicants believe that such a high boundary treatment is required to secure the site, but it is
considered that a wall of say 1m high along the boundary of the site with Haine Road with a
access gate, which would not require planning permission, would be sufficient to deter
unauthorised access to the site. Therefore little weight is afforded to the argument that
securing development of the site is a requirement for the condition of the site, and the impact
on the character and appearance of the area, to improve. This is entirely under the site
owner's control.
Whilst the Council does indeed wish to engage with owners of vacant properties and bring
them back into use, it is considered that the existing dwelling is likely to require demolition
rather than being easily brought back into an active use.

Page 40

Agenda Item 4b
Setting of Listed buildings
Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires
that when considering whether to grant planning permission for development which affects a
listed building or its setting to have special regard to the desirability of preserving the
building or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it
possesses.
The Framework defines Listed Buildings as a designated heritage asset and defines the
setting of a heritage asset as 'the surroundings in which a heritage asset is experienced. Its
extent is not fixed and may change as the asset and its surroundings evolve.
As outlined above, historically the application site would have been within the curtilage of the
wider farmstead, including the now listed buildings opposite the site. Having considered the
scale, density, design and layout of the proposed dwelling, it is considered that the
development would not result in harm to the setting or the historic features of the listed
buildings at Ozengell Grange (Grade II) and the tithe barn (Grade II*).
The agent advises that the development of the site with its landscaping plan and proposed
landscape management plan would enhance the setting of the Grange and its associated
barn.
Whilst it is acknowledged that this would be beneficial visually, it is noted that the site as set
out above no longer has a functional relationship with Grange or the barn and given the
established separation by Haine Road are not necessarily read in the same context. As has
been previously mentioned the site is within the applicant's ownership and additional
planting and a landscape management plan could be carried out without the requirement for
planning permission to be granted for the proposed development.
Archaeology
Thanet is rich in archaeology and policy HE01 of the Local plan seeks to ensure that
archaeology remains are adequately assessed, preserved and protected. Paragraph 189 of
the NPPF states that where a site on which development is proposed includes, or has the
potential to include, heritage assets with archaeological interest Local Planning Authorities
should require developers to submit an appropriate desk based assessment and, where
necessary, a field evaluation. Paragraph 195 states that Local Planning Authorities should
identify and assess the particular significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by
the proposal (including any development affecting the setting of a heritage asset) taking
account of the available evidence and any necessary expertise. They should take this into
account when considering the impact of the proposal on a heritage asset, to avoid or
minimise any conflict between the heritage asset's conservation and any aspect of the
proposal. Paragraph 205 states that Local Planning Authorities should require developers to
record and advance understanding of the significance of any heritage assets to be lost
(wholly or in part) in a manner proportionate to their importance and the impact, and to make
this evidence (and any archive generated) publicly accessible. However, the ability to record
the evidence of our past should not be a factor in deciding whether such loss should be
permitted.

Page 41

Agenda Item 4b

KCC Archaeology reviewed the previous application and advised that they considered the
building onsite is a non designated heritage asset and given that the proposal would see the
demolition of the building would wish a record to be made of the building prior to and during
demolition secured via the imposition of a condition.
They also state that the Historic Environment Records identifies a large number of
archaeological sites in the landscape surrounding the property and the site has high
archaeological potential. It is, however, noted that the northern part of the site historically
included a substantial chalk pit and within that area archaeological remains may have been
lost. Given the potential for prior disturbance to the site, they are satisfied that archaeological
matters can be addressed through condition and recommend a condition is imposed on any
grant of planning consent to secure a programme of archaeological works.
Given the above, Officers are satisfied that matters relating to archaeology can be dealt with
via conditions attached to an approval of the application
Living Conditions
Paragraph 119 of the NPPF states that planning decisions should promote an effective use
of land in meeting the need for homes and other uses, while safeguarding and improving the
environment and ensuring safe and healthy living conditions.
Local Plan policies QD03 and QD04 are also relevant to this application. Policy QD03
(Living Conditions) states that All new development should: 1) Be compatible with
neighbouring buildings and spaces and not lead to the unacceptable living conditions
through overlooking, noise or vibration, light pollution, overshadowing, loss of natural light or
sense of enclosure. 2) Be of appropriate size and layout with sufficient usable space to
facilitate comfortable living conditions and meet the standards set out in QD04. 3)
Residential development should include the provision of private or shared external amenity
space/play space, where possible. 4) Provide for clothes drying facilities and waste disposal
or bin storage, with a collection point for storage containers no further than 15 metres from
where the collection vehicle will pass. Policy QD04, which are the National Described Space
Standards (March 2015). Policy GI04 states that new family dwellings (those with 2 or more
bedrooms) will be expected to incorporate garden space in order to provide a safe "doorstep
play area'' for young children. With doorstep playspace being defined as playspace for
young children which is immediately adjacent to, closely visible and safely accessible from
the dwellings served.
Given the distances between the application site and surrounding residential development, it
is not considered that there would be any adverse impact from the proposed development
on the residential amenities of existing occupiers.
The proposed dwellings would be spacious (meeting the Technical Standards for dwelling
sizes) with good levels of light and ventilation. They would each be served by vehicle parking
and private amenity areas. Issue of safe access from the site is covered in the
Transportation section below.

Page 42

Agenda Item 4b
The proposal is therefore considered to be acceptable with regards to residential amenity in
regard to existing residents, and in terms of space standards and provision of gardens for
future residents. in accordance with Policy QD03 and QD04 of the Thanet Local Plan and
the National Planning Policy Framework.
Transportation
Paragraph 110 of the NPPF states that In assessing sites that may be allocated for
development in plans, or specific applications for development, it should be ensured that
amongst other aims: a) appropriate opportunities to promote sustainable transport modes
can be - or have been - taken up, given the type of development and its location and b) safe
and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all users. Paragraph 111 of the NPPF
states that development should only be prevented or refused on highway grounds if there
would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual impacts on the road
network would be severe. Paragraph 112 goes on to highlight that Within this context,
applications for development should: a) give priority first to pedestrian and cycle movements,
both within the scheme and with neighbouring areas; and second - so far as possible - to
facilitating access to high quality public transport, with layouts that maximise the catchment
area for bus or other public transport services, and appropriate facilities that encourage
public transport use; b) address the needs of people with disabilities and reduced mobility in
relation to all modes of transport; c) create places that are safe, secure and attractive - which
minimise the scope for conflicts between pedestrians, cyclists and vehicles, avoid
unnecessary street clutter, and respond to local character and design standards; d) allow for
the efficient delivery of goods, and access by service and emergency vehicles; and e) be
designed to enable charging of plug-in and other ultra-low emission vehicles in safe,
accessible and convenient locations.
Policy SP37 of the Local Plan states that new development must take account of the need to
respond to climate change: 1) by minimising vulnerability and providing resilience to the
impacts of climate change through the use of up to date technologies, efficient design and
appropriate siting and positioning of buildings; 2) mitigating against climate change by
reducing emissions and energy demands through the use of up to date technologies; 3)
realise and make best use of available opportunities to reduce the impact of climate change
on biodiversity and the natural environment by providing space for habitats and species to
move through the landscape and for the operation of natural processes, particularly at the
coast. Policy SP43 of the Local Plan states that the Council will work with developers,
transport service providers, and the local community to manage travel demand, by
promoting and facilitating walking, cycling and use of public transport as safe and convenient
means of transport. Development applications will be expected to take account of the need
to promote safe and sustainable travel. New developments must provide safe and attractive
cycling and walking opportunities to reduce the need to travel by car. Whilst policy SP44
states development generating a significant number of trips will be expected to be located
where a range of services are or will be conveniently accessible on foot, by cycle or public
transport.
Under Policy QD01,all developments are required to: 1) Achieve a high standard of energy
efficiency to the equivalent of Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes (subject to HE05
where applicable),2) Make the best use of solar energy passive heating and cooling, natural

Page 43

Agenda Item 4b
light, natural ventilation and landscaping, 3) Provide safe and attractive cycling and walking
opportunities to reduce the need to travel by car. Policy QD02 relates to general design
principles and states amongst other principles that developments must incorporate a high
degree of permeability for pedestrians and cyclists, provide safe and satisfactory access for
pedestrians, public transport and other vehicles, ensuring provision for disabled access and
Improve people's quality of life by creating safe and accessible environments, and promoting
public safety and security by designing out crime. Policy TP01 states that new development
will be expected to be designed so as to facilitate safe and convenient movement by
pedestrians including people with limited mobility, elderly people and people with young
children, whilst Policy TP03 states new development will be expected to consider the need
for the safety of cyclists and incorporate facilities for cyclists into the design of new and
improved roads, junction improvements and traffic management proposals.
No objection has been raised by KCC Highways in relation to the number of vehicular traffic
movements that would be generated by the proposed development or the level of parking
proposed within it.
-

Pedestrian Movements from the site

The application site is located outside of any urban confines alongside Haine Road which is
a busy access road with a speed limit of 60 mph. There are no footpaths along either side of
the road along the road frontage at this point and for some metres either side of the
application site. It is noted that the proposed development includes the provision of a
footpath along the frontage of the site, but no further. Concerns are raised about the safety
of the future occupiers of the site who would be likely to walk in the unlit carriageway of
Haine Road to get to bus stops and services and amenities. This would be a substantial
hazard for highway users. It is noted that there is a bridleway immediately to the south of
the site which could be utilised by pedestrians but this is unpaved as well as unlit and not
overlooked. The walking distance to the bus stops in Manston High Street is approximately
1400 metres. The walking route to the nearest bus stops in Haine Road/St John's Avenue to
the north is approximately 800 metres long and approximately 200 metres of it is on a
dedicated footway (this would increase to approximately 300 metres with the development
immediately to the south of Spratling Lane. The bus services in Haine Road/St John's
Avenue are more frequent than those through Manston and provide far less circuitous routes
to Westwood Cross, Margate and Ramsgate. Pedestrians are, therefore, far more likely to
try and walk along Haine Road than they are to use the bridleway. As such, it is considered
that the site is unsustainable with all future occupiers having to rely on private vehicles for
transport as well as likely to have a significant impact on highway safety. KCC Highways
have advised that development of the site could be supported if pedestrian links could be
provided to join existing footpaths along Haine Road but this would involve many metres of
land most of which is outside the control of the application.
The applicant's advise that the development approved on the surrounding area Manston
Green (OL/TH/14/0050) would provide footpaths along the remainder of Haine Road and
would also result in its downgrading as well as securing a contribution to pump priming
additional bus services to the area and that this application would provide the area of
footpath (missing from the Manston Green development as the site was not included in that
application) allowing the proposed footpaths in those application to connect to it. The

Page 44

Agenda Item 4b
Planning Statement submitted with this application also highlights the link with this
development but also highlights concerns that the Inspector did not consider the guidance
within the NPPF as a whole, but relied on certain paragraphs when determining the appeal.
It also highlights that the Inspector gave little weight to the submission at the time of the
previous application and the appeal that whilst the road is a national speed limit road (60
miles per hours), the 85th percentile speeds at the site frontage is some 42 miles per hour
in both directions and that there have only been 3 traffic incidents recorded in the the
previous 3 years, most of the traffic on Haine Road is cars which some light commercial
vehicles, that cyclists do use Haine Road (before sunrise and after sunset) and that there
was no acknowledgement in the appeal decision that the site lies within comfortable cycling
distances of a number of local services and amenities. It is also highlighted that the
Inspector failed to acknowledge that the neighbouring footpath and the neighbouring
bridleway could provide convenient walking and cycling access during daylight hours
particularly when the weather is fine and dry.
The current relevant local plan policies and paragraphs of the NPPF are set out in detail
above and the strong emphasis on providing sustainable means of travel including, walking,
cycling and public transport and inclusive access for all users are emphasised within them.
It is noted in paragraph 110 of the NPPF that appropriate opportunities to promote
sustainable transport modes should be taken up, in terms of type and location of the
development. Part b is clear in requiring that safe and suitable access to an application site
should be achieved for all users.
The information relating to actual speeds of vehicles using Haine Road gathered during the
traffic survey are noted as are the number of accidents (although no updated traffic surveys
or accident reports have been provided to support this current application). The use of the
road by cyclists at various times of the day are also noted, as is the fact that the site is a
comfortable cycling distance from services and amenities. It is, however, noted that Haine
Road is, at this current time, a 60 mph road which is unlit, with no footpaths or verges
currently in the area where pedestrians could shelter from vehicular traffic. Whilst survey
work identified that the majority of vehicles using the road were cars or small commercial
vehicles, this would have been at the time of the survey and there is no means within the
power of the applicants of preventing various types of vehicles using this public highway.
Whilst it is accepted that neighbouring footpath/bridleway would allow some access by
means of cycling or walking for future occupiers of the development, this would, as
recognised by the applicants, only be within daylight hours and periods of good weather.
Outside of those times, future occupiers of the development would have no real choice but to
rely on private vehicles or to attempt to cycle/walk along Haine Road.
-

Manston Green development

Turning now to the Manston Green development. Outline planning consent was granted for
the erection of 785 dwellings, highways infrastructure works (including single carriageway
link road), primary school, small scale retail unit, community hall, public open space in July
2016. This was an outline consent with all matters reserved for future consideration other
than access. Five phases of development were identified at the outline stage and to date
only the reserved matters for phase 1 has been submitted to and approved by the Council
(R/TH/19/0499). Phases 2,3, 4 and 5 would provide the adjoining footpath links along Haine

Page 45

Agenda Item 4b
Road and there are no valid applications relating to those phases with the Council for
consideration at the time of writing this report.
In dismissing the appeal, the Inspector advised that the main issue was whether the
proposed development would be sustainable having regard to its location, and having regard
to highway safety. He noted that bus services along Haine Road are proposed to be funded
in part by a financial contribution from the Manston Green development, the first part of
which is due after completion of the 100th dwelling in phase 1 and that the reserved matters
for phase 1 also included an extension to the bridleway to provide access to new and
existing services in Manston Road. He concluded that phase 1 of the Manston Green
Development, when completed, would provide safe pedestrian and cycle highway access for
the occupants of this site. He advised that there was no indication before him "of the likely
timetable for starting the scheme, let alone completing it." He went on to highlight that the
appellant was not the developer of Manston Green and he had nothing before him to firmly
indicate any completion dates or even starting dates for any phase. He noted that at the
time of his appeal site visit that no development of Manston Green had begun. Nor had the
strategic road been started which would skirt the western perimeter of the wider site which
would enable the downgrading of Haine road and he noted that element alone would be
likely to take a significant amount of time to constrict. He concluded that "Notwithstanding
the likely later completion of the appeal scheme in 2023, without any firm indication of when
or whether completion of safe transport links for future occupants of the appeal scheme
would occur, the development would not be sustainable in terms of the social and
environmental objectives set out on page 5 of the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF) or the highway safety and sustainable transport objectives of paragraphs 109 and
110. It would not comply with the comparable aims of policies TP02, TP03, QD01, QD02,
SP43 and SP44 of the Thanet District Local Plan of 2020."
The applicants for this application highlight the fact that the reserved matters for phase 1 of
the Manston Green development was approved in October 2019 and that details to
discharge pre-commencement conditions for that phase having been submitted to the
Council and subsequently discharged. They also highlight the fact that Staner Hall junction
improvements are likely to commence in summer 2021 and finish in Autumn 2022. They
conclude that the temporary, and limited, lack of pedestrian links resulting in a greater
reliability upon the car for occupiers of this development would not significantly and
demonstrably outweigh the benefits of the scheme.
Whilst it is noted that the reserved matters for phase 1 has been approved and its precommencement conditions discharged, with the commitment to a timetable for the Staner
Hill Junction improvements works set out, it is noted that applications for phases 2 and 3
have only just been submitted to the Council for consideration, and no development has
taken place to secure the commencement of works within Phase 1. Furthermore, the
specification for the 'Highway Works' to be completed within phase 1 are yet to be formally
approved in writing by KCC, which is required prior to the commencement of works on any
phase. KCC has advised that in order for this element of the legal agreement to be complied
with they would expect for Stage 2 approval from KCC's Agreements Team to be required.
Whilst development on phase 1 must commence before October 2021, there is no
completion date under the control of either the applicant of this scheme or the Council if

Page 46

Agenda Item 4b
dwellings are not fully constructed for occupation. In terms of phases 2 and 3, required for
downgrading the Haine road and footpath links either side, the applicant of those schemes
would have 2 years from approval of those schemes to implement the development, with the
pedestrian links required prior to occupation of dwellings in those phases after that.
Given this, it is not considered that there is certainty that the footpaths for the Manston
Green development will come forward and all phases built out, and even if it is, it is likely that
the development related to this application would come forward prior to the Manston Green
improvements, meaning that the harm to highway safety and the safety of potential
occupiers as outlined above will still occur for a period of time, thereby failing to achieve
sustainable development.
Ecology and biodiversity
Para 179 a) of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should contribute to and
enhance the natural and local environment by protecting and enhancing valued landscapes,
sites of biodiversity or geological value and soils (in a manner commensurate with their
statutory status or identified quality in the development plan).
Thanet Local Plan Policy SP30 (Biodiversity and Geodiversity Assets) states development
proposals will, where appropriate, be required to make a positive contribution to the
conservation, enhancement and management of biodiversity and geodiversity assets
resulting in a net gain for biodiversity assets. Sites should be assessed for the potential
presence of biodiversity assets and protected species. For sites where important biodiversity
assets, including protected species and habitats including SPA functional land, or other
notable species, may be affected, an ecological assessment will be required to assess the
impact of the proposed development on the relevant species or habitats. Planning
permission will not be granted for development if it results in significant harm to biodiversity
and geodiversity assets, which cannot be adequately mitigated or as a last resort
compensated for, to the satisfaction of the appropriate authority.
A preliminary Ecological Appraisal was submitted in support of the application. It concluded
that the trees that were to be retained on site should be protected during construction. No
recommendations for further work were made in relation to amphibians, reptiles, Hazel
Dormice, badgers or birds other than to ensure that any clearance works should be done
outside the bird nesting season (March to August inclusive). It did however, recommend that
one night time survey by two surveyors should be undertaken to confirm that the existing
building on the site was not used by roosting bats. A one night bat survey was subsequently
undertaken and found that no bats were seen emerging from the building and only a low
number of common pipistrelle bats were seen and heard commuting and foraging. As such
the survey concludes that the building was not being used as a bat roost and no mitigation or
licence would be expected to be required prior to its demolition.
KCC's Biodiversity Team have reviewed both reports and raise no objection to the proposed
development, subject to the imposition of a condition to secure on site ecological
enhancements as part of the development and an informative relating to avoiding works to
trees and established landscaping during the breeding bird season.

Page 47

Agenda Item 4b
The suggested condition is considered to meet the tests for the imposition of conditions and
it is considered that with this condition that there would be no adverse impact on the ecology
from the proposed development.
The applicants also advise that enhanced landscaping and the proposed landscape
management plan would provide biodiversity benefits and enhancements which would
accord with the aims and objectives of both local plan policies and the NPPF. Again, it is not
considered that granting planning permission is the only means of securing these benefits
and it is noted that some of the site has begin to be reclaimed by nature, which may in itself
provide ecology/biodiversity benefits.
Habitat Regulations
European sites are afforded protection under the Conservation and Habitats and Species
Regulations 2010 (as amended the Habitat Regulations) and there is a duty placed upon the
competent authority (in this case TDC) to have regard to the potential impact that any project
may have on those sites. Projects (therefore planning applications and prior approval) can
only be permitted having ascertained that there will be no adverse effect on the integrity of
the protected area, either alone or in combination with other projects or plans.
Natural England has previously advised that the level of population increase predicted in
Thanet should be considered likely to have a significant effect on the interest features for
which the Thanet Coast and Sandwich Bay Special Protection Area (SPA) and RAMSAR
have been identified.
Thanet District Council produced the 'The Strategic Access Management and Monitoring
Plan (SAMM)' to deal with these matters, which focuses on the impacts of recreational
activities on the Thanet section of the Thanet Coast and Sandwich Bay Special Protection
Area (SPA). The studies indicate that recreational disturbance is a potential cause of the
decline in bird numbers in the SPA. To enable the Council to be satisfied that proposed
residential development will avoid a likely significant effect on the designated sites (due to an
increase in recreation) an appropriate assessment for every application proposing an
increase in residential units must be undertaken and a financial contribution is required for all
additional residential development to contribute to the district wide mitigation strategy (which
forms part of the Local Plan). This mitigation has meant residential developments would
accord with the Habitat Regulations. This requirement is set out in Policy SP29 of the Local
Plan.
The Council has carried out an appropriate assessment on the development in accordance
with the Conservation of protected species and Habitat Regulations. Both Natural England
and KCC Biodiversity raise no objection to the impact of the development on the statutory
nature conservation sites subject to the financial contribution to mitigate the effect of the
development in the SAMM. The applicants have advised that they will provide this
contribution and have provided a completed undertaking to that effect.

Page 48

Agenda Item 4b
Flooding and drainage
Paragraph 159 of the NPPF refers that inappropriate development in areas at risk of flooding
should be avoided. Inappropriate development in areas at risk of flooding should be avoided
by directing development away from areas at highest risk (whether existing or future). Policy
CC02 (Surface Water Management) states that "New development is required to manage
surface water resulting from the development using sustainable drainage systems (SuDs)
wherever possible. SuDs design, together with a robust long term maintenance plan should
be included as an integral part of the master planning and design process for new
development and should, wherever possible, incorporate multi-functional benefits for people
and wildlife.
The application site lies within flood zone 1 as shown on the Environment Agency's Flood
Risk Maps and as such, is considered to be at a low risk of flooding and given that the site is
less than a hectare in size there is no requirement for the applicants to submit a Flood risk
Assessment.
The application form states that surface water from the development would be disposed of
via a sustainable drainage system but the means of disposal for foul sewer is not identified.
The Environment Agency raised concerns in relation to the foul drainage disposal and that it
should be via mains drainage on the previous application. It is considered that this matter
could be dealt with via the imposition of conditions requiring details to be submitted prior to
commencement of development (excluding demolition of the building) which would ensure
the Groundwater Protection Zone and principal aquifer is safeguard
Contamination
Paragraph 174 e) of the NPPF states planning decisions should contribute to and enhance
the natural and local environment by preventing new and existing development from
contributing to, being put at unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by,
unacceptable levels of soil, air, water or noise pollution or land instability. Development
should, wherever possible, help to improve local environmental conditions such as air and
water quality. Where a site is affected by contamination or land stability issues, responsibility
for securing a safe development rests with the developer and/or landowner. Policy SE03
(land affected by contamination) states that development on land known or suspected to be
contaminated or likely to be adversely affected by such contamination will only be permitted
where: 1) an appropriate site investigation and assessment (agreed by the Council) has
been carried out as part of the application to establish whether contamination is present and
to identify any remedial measures necessary to ensure that the site is suitable for the
proposed end use; 2) the proposed remedial measures would be acceptable in planning
terms and would provide effective safeguards against contamination hazards during the
development and subsequent occupation of the site. Planning conditions will be attached to
any consent to ensure that remedial measures are fully implemented, before occupation. In
the case of sites where contamination is only considered to be a possible risk, a site
investigation will be required by condition.

Page 49

Agenda Item 4b
The Council's Contamination Officer has reviewed the application and advises that further
intrusive investigation is required to assess the risks from identified sources of
contamination. They do not object to the application, but recommend that conditions relating
to site characterisation and remediation and unexpected contamination are attached to any
grant of planning consent.
The applicant's highlight that the proposed development, if approved, would lead to
environmental improvements through the removal and remediation of any potential
contamination of the site which would also ensure protection of the groundwater source
protection zone at this point.
Whilst this would be an improvement and a requirement secured by condition if consent for
residential development on site, the site is within the applicant's ownership and these works
could be carried out at any time. It is not considered that the only way that these works
could be achieved would be to grant the requested planning consent.
These conditions are considered reasonable and it is considered that, subject to their
imposition, that there would be no adverse impact in relation to contamination from the
proposed development.
Conclusion
The proposal is for 6 dwellings and given the need for housing in Thanet and the fact that
the Council has failed the housing delivery tests the proposal is considered against the
criteria of sustainable development within the NPPF with regard to other material planning
considerations.
The NPPF 2021 has at its heart the presumption in favour of sustainable development as set
out in section 2 of the NPPF 2021 Achieving sustainable development involves the pursuit of
economic, environmental and social objectives. The relationship of this scheme to the
objectives is summarised below and a balancing exercise has to be undertaken to weigh the
benefits of the scheme against its disadvantages:
In terms of the economic dimension of sustainable development the provision of 6 new
dwellings would give rise to employment during the construction phase of the development,
and is likely to result in an increase in the use of local services and facilities, both of which
will be of benefit, albeit modest, to the local economy.
In terms of the social dimension of sustainable development paragraph 60 of the NPPF
refers to 'the Government's objective of significantly boosting the supply of homes'. The
NPPF points out that 'small and medium sized sites can make an important contribution to
meeting the housing requirement of an area, and are often built-out relatively quickly' and
that 'development in one village may support services in a village nearby'
The scheme brings forward modest benefits with 6 additional market dwellings, a small
contribution to market housing in the area, it is likely to support shops and services and it
would allow increased social interaction between residents existing and new, and

Page 50

Agenda Item 4b
employment personnel albeit in a modest way. The scheme is considered to be well
designed as sought by paragraph 8.b) of the NPPF.
In terms of the environmental dimension of sustainable development the environmental
issues are assessed in earlier sections of this report but to summarise, it is not considered
that the proposal would have an adverse effect on the countryside, given the allocation of
the surrounding area for development for comprehensive redevelopment and it is considered
that the scheme would not have an adverse effect on the character and appearance of the
area or biodiversity/ecology issues. It is, however, noted that the lack of a footway link
along this part of Haine Road, which is narrow, partly unlit and subject to the national speed
limit (60mph) would result in highway safety issues from pedestrians/cyclists from this
development using the road. Given this, it is considered likely that the site is unsustainable
in transportation terms in the short and potential medium term with all future occupiers
having to rely on private vehicles for transport.
Overall it is considered that the public benefits of the scheme would be significantly and
demonstrably outweighed by the harm set out above. The development of six dwellings is
considered to satisfy economic and social objectives but fail the environmental objective of
sustainable development as required by the NPPF. Therefore the application is
recommended for refusal.

Case Officer
Annabel Hemmings

Page 51

Agenda Item 4b
TITLE:

F/TH/21/0566

Project

Ozengell Farmhouse Haine Road RAMSGATE Kent CT12 5ER

Scale:

Page 52

Agenda Item 4c
D03

F/TH/21/0064

PROPOSAL:

Erection of three and two storey building containg 3No. 1bed
residential dwellings

LOCATION:
Land Adjacent To 2 Shah Place RAMSGATE Kent
WARD:

Central Harbour

AGENT:

Ms Debbie Marriage

APPLICANT:

Mr Tim Woolcott

RECOMMENDATION:

Defer & Delegate

Subject to the following conditions:
1

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.
GROUND:
In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Purchase Act 2004).

2

The proposed development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted
application and the approved drawings numbered C-110, C-111 B (received
30/06/21), C-112 A (received 30/06/21), C-113 A (received 30/06/21), C-123 A
(received 30/06/21), C-124, C-125, C-126 A (received 30/06/21), C-127 A (received
30/06/21), C-128, C-129 A (received 30/06/21) C-130 A (received 30/06/21)
GROUND
To secure the proper development of the area.

3

The building hereby permitted shall be constructed using materials as detailed on
drawing C-800 unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
GROUND
In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with Policy QD02 of the Thanet
Local Plan.

4

The windows in the rear elevation of the building hereby approved (as annotated on
drawing C-111 B) shall be provided and maintained with obscured glass to a
minimum level of obscurity to conform to Pilkington Glass level 4 or equivalent and
shall be installed prior to first occupation of the development hereby permitted and
permanently retained thereafter.
GROUND

Page 53

Agenda Item 4c
To safeguard the residential amenities currently enjoyed by the occupiers of nearby
residential properties in accordance with Policy QD03 of the Thanet Local Plan.
5

Prior to the first occupation of the development, the secure cycle parking facilities, as
shown on approved drawing no. C-110 shall be provided and thereafter maintained.
GROUND
To promote cycling as an alternative form of transport, in accordance with Policy
TP03 and SP43 of the Thanet Local Plan.

6

Prior to the commencement of any development on site details to include the
following shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority and
should be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
(a) Details of working hours
(b) Details of plant/including if piling is required
(c) Timing of deliveries
(d) Dust control measures
All other matters shall be in accordance with the Document titled Outline
Construction Management Plan (dated January 2021).
GROUND
In the interests of highway safety and neighbouring amenity, in accordance with
Policy QD03 of the Thanet Local Plan and the advice contained within the NPPF.

7

Prior to the first use of the roof terrace/balcony area to unit 1 hereby permitted,
privacy screens of a minimum height of 1.8m shall be installed along the rear as
shown on the approved plans numbered C-111 B and C-126 A and thereafter
maintained.
GROUND
To safeguard the residential amenities currently enjoyed by the occupiers of nearby
residential properties in accordance with Policy QD03 of the Thanet Local Plan.

8

No development shall take place until the applicant, or their agents or successors in
title, has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in
accordance with a written specification and timetable which has been submitted to
and approved by the Local Planning Authority.
GROUND
To ensure that features of archaeological interest are properly examined and
recorded in accordance with Policy HE01 of the Thanet Local Plan and the advice
contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

9

The development hereby permitted shall be constructed to a high standard of energy
efficiency to the equivalent of Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes.

Page 54

Agenda Item 4c

GROUND
All new buildings and conversions of existing buildings must be designed to reduce
emissions of greenhouse gases and have resilience to function in a changing
climate, in accordance with Policy QD01 of the Thanet Local Plan.
10

The development hereby permitted shall be constructed in order to meet the required
technical standard for water efficiency of 110litres/person/day, thereby Part G2 Part
36 (2b) of Schedule 1 Regulation 36 to the Building Regulations 2010, as amended,
applies.
GROUND
Thanet is within a water stress area as identified by the Environment Agency, and
therefore new developments will be expected to meet the water efficiency optional
requirement of 110litre /person/day, in accordance with Policy QD04 of the Thanet
Local Plan.

SITE, LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION
The application site is located on the base of a larger triangular parcel of land. The triangular
parcel of land fronts Shah Place, Park Road and Chatham Street. The application is largely
rectangular in shape with the largest road frontage is to Park Road, on its northern side. The
site currently consists of hardstanding and some self-seeded vegetation.
To the south of the site are two and a half storey terrace properties fronting Park Road, to
the east there are two storey with semi basement properties fronting Boundary Road and
along Chatham Street there are three storey properties. Along Shah Place properties from
the road appear two storey, but due to changes in levels have a semi basement level to the
rear.
The application site is located just outside of the Ramsgate Conservation Area, and no. 31
Chatham Street is a listed building. The site is not subject to any other site specific
designations.
RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
F/TH/20/0692 Erection of three and two storey building containing 2No. two bed and 2No.
1bed residential flats with roof terrace - Refused by the Planning Committee 12/08/20
Refusal reasons:
1. The proposed 2 and 3 storey building, by virtue of its design, width, and mass would
represent a visually dominant, obtrusive and incongruous form of development which
would fail to respond to or respect the traditional pattern and appearance of
development of the surrounding residential area, resulting in significant harm to the
appearance and local distinctiveness of the area, contrary to saved Thanet Local
Plan Policy SP35, QD01, QD02 and paragraphs 122, 127 and 130 of the National
Planning Policy Framework.

Page 55

Agenda Item 4c

2. The proposed building, by virtue of its location and relationship with the adjacent
residential units, would result in an unacceptable loss of light and outlook from the
adjacent property (no.1 Shah Place and 76 Chatham Street), and poor standard of
accommodation for future occupants by the use of obscure glazing to rear windows
at first and second floor level, significantly detrimental to the amenities enjoyed by
the occupiers thereof and future living conditions of new occupants, contrary to
Thanet Local Plan Policies QD03, QD04 and paragraph 117 of the National Planning
Policy Framework.
3. The proposed two bedroom units with the scheme would not be provided with a safe
doorstep play area for young children, to the detriment of the amenities enjoyed by
the occupiers of the proposed two bedroom residential unit, contrary to Thanet Local
Plan Policy GI04 and paragraph 127 of the National Planning Policy Framework.
4. The proposed development will result in additional pressure on the Thanet Coast and
Sandwich Bay Special Protection Area (SPA), and Sandwich Bay and Hacklinge
Marshes Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI), and in the absence of an
acceptable form of mitigation to relieve the pressure, the proposed development
would be contrary to policy SP29 of the Thanet Local Plan and paragraph 177 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT
The application is for full planning permission for the erection of a three and two storey
building containing 3No. 1bed residential flats.
The proposed building would have pitched, false pitch and flat roofs with parapets. The three
storey element would front part of Park Road (at the west end of the site) and wrap around
to Shah Place. The proposed building would wrap around the perimeter of the site to provide
a continuous frontage, although an access passageway is provided midway along the Park
Road frontage at ground level.
In terms of accommodation to the west of the access passageway there are accesses
leading to a shared cycle store and separate refuse store for the proposed three residential
units. To the east of the passageway at ground level is unit 2 and beyond this unit 3 both
with their own entrance from Park Road. Both of these units have accommodation over two
floors. At the first floor at the eastern end are the bedrooms to units 2 and 3. Unit 2 has a
ground floor private amenity space and unit 3 has a first floor terrace. To the western end is
unit 1, which is separated from unit 2 by its private terrace. The second floor would have the
bedroom and bathroom to unit 1.
In terms of materials the submitted plan details that the building would be constructed from
bricks with fibre cement artificial slats for the roof and powder coated windows and paving
for the passage and entrance area.

Page 56

Agenda Item 4c
DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES
Thanet Local Plan 2020
SP01 - Spatial Strategy - Housing
SP11 - Ramsgate
SP14 - General Housing Policy
SP29 - Strategic Access Management and Monitoring Plan (SAMM)
SP35 - Quality Development
SP36 - Conservation and Enhancement of Thanet's Historic Environment
SP43 - Safe and Sustainable Travel
SP44 - Accessible locations
H01 - Housing Development
GI04 - Amenity Green Space and Equipped Play Areas
QD01 - Sustainable Design
QD02 - General Design Principles
QD03 - Living Conditions
QD04 - Technical Standards
QD05 - Accessible and Adaptable Accommodation
HE01 - Archaeology
HE02 - Development in Conservation Areas
HE03 - Heritage Assets
TP02 - Walking
TP03 - Cycling
TP06 - Car Parking
NOTIFICATIONS
Letters were sent to adjoining occupiers, a site notice posted close to the site and the
application publicised in a local newspaper. Two representations were received; one
objecting and one supporting.
The concerns can be summarised as follows:
- Concern about visibility when pulling out of Shah Place onto Park Road
- Question if the scheme will have any off street parking
- Where will construction traffic park?
- Question raised about health and safety of construction works
The letter of support detailed that they have no objection to the scheme and that their
existing windows are high up and they would still be provided with good light and ventilation.
Ramsgate Town Council: No objection.
CONSULTATIONS
Environment Agency: We have assessed this application as having a low environmental
risk. We therefore have no comments to make

Page 57

Agenda Item 4c
Southern Water: Southern Water requires a formal application for a connection to the public
foul sewer to be made by the applicant or developer.
Our initial investigations indicate that there are no dedicated public surface water sewers in
the area to serve this development. Alternative means of draining surface water from this
development are required. Discharge of surface water runoff to public combined network can
be allowed only once full assessment of other alternative methods have been carried out
and discounted and at the discharge rates agreed with Southern Water as not introducing
detriment to downstream network. Foul and surface water onsite network shall remain
separate until the boundary of the site or final connection to public sewer.
It is possible that a sewer now deemed to be public could be crossing the development site.
Therefore, should any sewer be found during construction works, an investigation of the
sewer will be required to ascertain its ownership before any further works commence on site.
KCC Highways and Transportation: Non protocol application.
TDC Conservation Officer: "Following a review of the proposed application, I do not
believe that there would be substantial harm to the aesthetic appearance of the surrounding
conservation area and that the proposed scheme would ultimately improve the appearance
of the currently unmaintained site.
Previously an application was submitted that was much more contemporary in design which
has since been altered to better reflect the surrounding environment. It was also previously
much larger in scale whereas now it has been reduced in height.
For these reasons I do not believe the proposed cause substantial harm to the surrounding
conservation area and therefore I do not object to this application."
TDC Environmental Health Officer: "Having reviewed the Construction Management Plan
(CMP) I would like to offer comments regarding the rescheduling of deliveries to avoid peak
times given the area is heavily trafficked. Whilst this approach is accepted, the rescheduling
should not be at either end of the working day but within it - scheduling deliveries very early
or late will impact on neighbours. Details of proposed working hours, plant and certainly
proposals that include piling must be included with the CMP along with dust control
measures."
COMMENTS
This application is referred to the Planning Committee at the request of Cllr Albon for
Members to consider the scale of the proposed development and its impact on the
residential amenity of surrounding occupiers.
The main considerations in assessing the submitted scheme are the principle of
development, the impact upon the character and appearance of the area, the impact upon
living conditions of neighbouring property occupiers and the impact upon highway safety.

Page 58

Agenda Item 4c
Principle
In line with Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2014, planning
decisions must be taken in accordance with the 'development plan' unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.
Paragraph 119 of the National Planning Policy Framework states planning policies and
decisions should promote an effective use of land in meeting the need for homes and other
uses, while safeguarding and improving the environment and ensuring safe and healthy
living conditions. Strategic policies should set out a clear strategy for accommodating
objectively assessed needs, in a way that makes as much use as possible of previouslydeveloped or 'brownfield' land.
Policy HO1 of the Thanet Local Plan states that residential development on non-allocated
sites within the confines of the urban area can be granted where it meets other relevant
Local Plan policies.
The application proposes the erection of a three and two storey building to provide three
residential units. The site is located within the urban confines and therefore accords with this
policy.
The principle of the development is therefore considered to be acceptable, subject to the
consideration of all other material planning considerations.
Character and Appearance
The impact the proposed scheme may have upon the character and appearance of the area
and in particular the impact upon the setting of the Ramsgate Conservation Area as
designated heritage asset falls to be assessed.
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that when considering the impact of
a proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset; great weight
should be given to the asset's conservation. This is irrespective of whether any potential
harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less than substantial harm to its significance.
The NPPF goes on to state in states that where a development proposal would lead to less
than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be
weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, including where appropriate, securing its
optimum viable use.
Policy SP36 of the Council's Local Plan is a strategic policy which states that the council will
support, value and have regard to the historic or archaeological significance of Heritage
Assets. Policy HE02 relates specifically to new developments in conservation areas. It
states that within conservation areas, development proposals which preserve or enhance the
character or appearance of the area will be permitted and when relating to proposals to
extend existing buildings within the conservation area that the character, scale and plan form
of the original building are respected and the extension is subordinate to it and does not
dominate principal elevations and appropriate materials and detailing are proposed and the

Page 59

Agenda Item 4c
extension would not result in the loss of features that contribute to the character or
appearance of the conservation area.
Paragraph 124 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should support
development that makes efficient use of land, taking into account: a) the identified need for
different types of housing and other forms of development, and the availability of land
suitable for accommodating it; b) local market conditions and viability; c) the availability and
capacity of infrastructure and services - both existing and proposed - as well as their
potential for further improvement and the scope to promote sustainable travel modes that
limit future car use; d) the desirability of maintaining an area's prevailing character and
setting (including residential gardens), or of promoting regeneration and change; and e) the
importance of securing well-designed, attractive and healthy places.
Paragraph 174 of the NPPF states that the creation of high quality buildings and places is
fundamental to what the planning and development process should achieve.
Policy SP35 relates to the quality of development and states that new development will be
required to be of high quality and inclusive design. Policy QD01 relates to sustainable design
and sets out that all new buildings and conversions of existing buildings must be designed to
reduce emissions of greenhouse gasses and have resilience to function in a changing
climate. Policy QD02 is a general design policy and sets out that the primary planning aim in
all new development is to promote or reinforce the local character of the area and provide
high quality and inclusive design and be sustainable in all other respects.
In terms of the Conservation Area, the site falls outside of its boundary. The boundary is
located to the south east of the site enclosing those properties fronting Chatham Place
(western boundary) and properties along the southern side of Boundary Road (northern
boundary of the Conservation Area). The site can, however, be viewed from the
Conservation Area, and, therefore, any development on this site would have an impact on it.
It is appreciated by officers that this site is currently vacant and has been tidied up since the
consideration of the last application.
The character of the surrounding area is mixed, but contains predominantly two and three
storey properties of a traditional design reflective of their ages. Properties within the area
have detailing, particularly to the fenestration, with bay or recessed windows with traditional
placement in terms of their positions. Materials consist of brick work or render, whilst some
properties have pitched roofs and others have flat roofs with parapets.
This site, whilst being acceptable in principle for development, has a number of constraints
that make it difficult to develop. These include the prominence of the site due to its position
in the road, the long and relatively narrow dimension of the site, its topography and
relationship with adjoining properties.
Within the Planning Statement submitted with this application the agent states that in relation
to the previous proposals for the site:

Page 60

Agenda Item 4c
'The scheme has been significantly amended, so that a building with considerably reduced
massing and scale is now proposed. The previous contemporary architectural style,
proposing materials and form that contrasted with the predominant brick and painted render
of the surrounding buildings, has been discarded in favour of a brick built building with a
gabled roof form.'
In addition, it is confirmed that during the application process, the current scheme has been
further amended to overcome officer concerns which related to the impact of the
development on the residential amenities of adjoining occupiers, which will be discussed in
more detail in the following section of the report. The application initially sought approval for
1no 2 bed and 2no 1 bed units, the current scheme, as a result of the amendments, is for
3no 1bed units.
The design submitted does not seek to directly replicate the design of adjoining dwellings
that it would be viewed in relation to, but takes reference from buildings in the vicinity,
including incorporating gables, similar fenestration style and materials.
In terms of the height, the building proposed would be three and two storey, and is in
keeping with the height of the adjoining buildings. However, due to the natural topography of
the wider site (the triangular parcel) the application site is lower than the other two sides of
the triangle. The proposed building would not be higher than any of the roof forms on this
wider parcel of land. Furthermore the mass of the building has been reduced in comparison
to the previous application considered and refused by Members. In addition the proposed
building whilst still being on the back edge of the footpath has recessed elements, and the
fact that gables are incorporated into the design reduces the building mass, its dominance
within the street scene and assisting the assimilation of the proposal within the context of the
site.
In terms of design, whilst not being a copy of adjacent buildings the proposal respects their
traditional form and proportions particular in terms of fenestration and incorporation of gables
into the design. This gives the resulting building a vertical emphasis which is a characteristic
of the area. It is considered that the proposed building would provide a strong frontage to the
site and the wider area (by enclosing the site). It is considered that the overall design of the
building has addressed the concerns which lead to the design reason for refusal in the
earlier application.
Roof terraces are proposed for unit 1 and unit 3, whilst normally it is considered that these
would appear as an alien feature within the street scene and Conservation Area the design
has meant that the terraces are set back behind openings thus reducing their visual
prominence. This set back would mean that domestic paraphernalia associated with their
use would not be clearly visible from ground level.
The materials proposed are generally considered acceptable, however, it is considered that
samples of materials should be secured by condition, if planning permission is granted, as it
is not clear if the named materials will be utilised and also the sites proximity to the
Conservation Area.

Page 61

Agenda Item 4c
In terms of the Grade II listed property; 31 Chatham Place. This site is located to the south
east of the application site and is separated by roads. No 31 also faces west rather and is at
an angle to the application site. Given this I consider that due to the positioning and
orientation of the proposed scheme, the scheme would not impede on these views which
therefore reduces the impact to this heritage asset.
It is considered that the alteration in the design approach when compared to the previously
refused scheme would allow the proposed scheme to integrate into the streetscape, whilst
not be a direct replication of existing built form - would have regard to the context which its
would be seen in, incorporating more traditional features whilst still being a that is more
modern and of modern standards when compared directly to the existing.
Given the above, it is considered that the development would result in an acceptable form of
development that would preserve the character and appearance of the site and the
surrounding area. The development is therefore considered to be in accordance with the
aims of Policies SP35 and QD02 of the Local Plan and the guidance in the National Planning
Policy Framework.
Living Conditions
Paragraph 119 of the NPPF states that planning decisions should promote an effective use
of land in meeting the need for homes and other uses, while safeguarding and improving the
environment and ensuring safe and healthy living conditions.
Policy QD03 of the Local Plan deals specifically with living conditions. This policy states that
all new development should:
1) Be compatible with neighbouring buildings and spaces and not lead to unacceptable living
conditions through overlooking, noise or vibration, light pollution, overshadowing, loss of
natural light or sense of enclosure.
2) Be of appropriate size and layout with sufficient usable space to facilitate comfortable
living conditions and meet the standards set out in QD04.
3) Residential development should include the provision of private or shared external
amenity space/play space, where possible.
4) Provide for clothes drying facilities and waste disposal or bin storage, with a collection
point for storage containers no further than 15 metres from where the collection vehicle will
pass.
Due to the constraints of the site, as well as the close neighbour relationship, the relationship
between the proposed development and neighbouring units need to be carefully assessed to
ensure that there would be no material harm to neighbour amenity.
In support of the application, daylight studies in the form of plans were submitted with the
application. This covers the existing and proposed situation at certain times of the year;
Winter Solstice, March Equinox, September equinox and the summer Solstice and at
9.30am, 12.00pm and 3.30pm. These were based on the plans originally submitted with this
application. During the application process, the application was amended to remove a
second bedroom to unit 2. This has resulted in the depth of the building being reduced at this
point.

Page 62

Agenda Item 4c

No 2 Shah Place has what appears to be a rear kitchen and bathroom window at ground
floor level. There are no windows on the upper floors. The proposed building would abut no.
2's side wall; this elevation contains no windows and would therefore not create any material
harm. The proposed building would project beyond the rear of this property and its rear yard
area, however only at ground level. Although there would be a roof terrace serving unit 1 at
first floor level (but set back from the boundary between the two sites). This would give a
space between the two storey elements before stepping back up to two storey at the end of
yard of no. 2 Shah Place. This revised arrangement would lessen the impact upon no. 2 in
terms of overshadowing and loss of daylight when compared to the previously refused
scheme. As started unit 1 does have a first floor terrace area, Plan numbered C-126
Revision A confirms that this terrace would have a privacy screen, although precise details
are not given. This can be secured in perpetuity by condition. Whilst there would still be
some impact upon the living conditions of no. 2 Shah Place, given their close relationship
and that the site does not currently have a building in-situ, I do not consider it to be
materially harmful. On balance therefore I consider this relationship would be acceptable.
With regard to the windows within the rear elevation of the proposed building, the plans
annotate that these will be fitted with obscure glazing at first floor; this includes both a
bedroom to unit 2 and circulation spaces for units 2 & 3. The kitchen windows to the units
would have openings for ventilation, these are in the front elevations facing out onto the
road.
No. 1 Shah Place is enclosed to some degree by the configuration of the existing properties
and has a very modest rear yard. The proposal would have a more modest effect on this
occupier, given the separation, however, there would still be an impact. Given the angles
and separation distance I consider that in terms of overlooking this property would not be
unreasonably affected.
No. 76 Chatham Street is in an L shape building- therefore having two road frontages. It
would abut the east end of the proposed building. The end that would abut the proposed
building is single storey, stepping down from the two storey part at the top of the site. There
are no windows within this flank, however, there are windows facing into its rear courtyard
and also on the rear face of the upper northern rear face, including the two upper floors and
openings within the ground floor (when viewing from the south). There is planning history on
this site- the last approval being in 1987 to change the use to one shop, one office and three
self contained flats. It is, however, clear from a site visit that there is no shop or office and
the building looks to be used solely for residential. The proposed building at this point would
be two storey at the front stepping down to single storey at the rear of the site and would
have a roof terrace to unit 3 at the front of the building for the occupiers of this unit. To
reduce the impact upon the occupiers of no.76 the two storey part of the building extends no
further back into the site than no. 76. In terms of impact to the rear facing windows- in the
west and south elevation of no.76, and also its rear yard area, given the proposed layout and
reduced scale of the building it is considered that it would not reduce day/sunlight to an
unacceptable degree.
Taking the above into account, it is considered the impact from the development to no. 1
Shah Place and 76 Chatham Street to be acceptable in terms of loss of light,

Page 63

Agenda Item 4c
overshadowing, sense of enclosure and overlooking in accordance with policy QD03 of the
Local Plan and the NPPF.
Doorstep playspace is required for all 2-bed units or more under Policy GI04 of the Thanet
Local Plan, along with refuse storage, clothes drying and cycle storage space. It is confirmed
that since the application has been submitted the scheme has been amended so that all
units have one bedroom. Therefore this policy does not require a doorstep playspace,
although two of the units have a roof terrace and the third has a ground floor outdoor space.
In terms of the living conditions of the future occupiers of the proposed dwellings, Policy
QD03 requires new development to be of an appropriate size and layout with sufficient
usable space to facilitate comfortable living conditions and meet the standards set out in
Policy QD04, which are the National Described Space Standards (March 2015). Paragraph
130 of the National Planning Policy Framework requires development to provide a high
standard of amenity for existing and future users, with all windows serving primary habitable
rooms required to provide an acceptable level of outlook, natural light and ventilation for the
rooms. For a one bedroom, two person unit over two floors the requirement is 58sqm. The
proposed units meet all of these criteria in terms of the overall floor space to habitable rooms
and is therefore considered policy compliant. It is considered that the internal layout and
windows that serve these rooms would provide a suitable standard of future occupiers of the
residential units.
Given the above, following the amendments to the application, that the proposed
development would not have an adverse impact on the residential amenities of surrounding
occupiers and provide a good standard of accommodation for future occupiers.
Highways
It is noted that Kent Highways normally require one vehicle parking space per unit in an
urban location such as Shah Place. Off-street parking is not, however, included in the
scheme and the restricted size of the site and need to maintain access for properties to the
rear does not easily allow for off-street parking.
The ground floor storage area would provide the development with safe storage space for
bicycles for the three units being created. In addition the site is located in a sustainable
location, close to local facilities (including railway station and Asda) and within easy walking
distance of the main Ramsgate town centre and close to public transport connections.
There would be sufficient space for cycle parking for the units with the development.
Given the accessibility of the site, it is not considered that it would not be necessary to
provide off street parking in this instance.
Due to the constrained location of the site, it is suggested that details of how construction on
the site will be managed. Such details would include, but not necessarily be limited to,
the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors, construction vehicle loading/unloading,
turning facilities and access routes/arrangements, loading and unloading of plant and
materials, storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development and wheel
washing facilities.

Page 64

Agenda Item 4c

Given the above, it is considered that the proposed development would not have an adverse
impact on highway safety or parking in the area.
Contributions
Natural England has previously advised that the level of population increase predicted in
Thanet should be considered likely to have a significant effect on the interest features for
which the Thanet Coast and Sandwich Bay Special Protection Area (SPA) and RAMSAR
have been identified.
Thanet District Council produced the 'The Strategic Access Management and Monitoring
Plan (SAMM)' to deal with these matters, which focuses on the impacts of recreational
activities on the Thanet section of the Thanet Coast and Sandwich Bay Special Protection
Area (SPA). The studies indicate that recreational disturbance is a potential cause of the
decline in bird numbers in the SPA. To enable the Council to be satisfied that proposed
residential development will avoid a likely significant effect on the designated sites (due to an
increase in recreation) a financial contribution is required for all housing developments to
contribute to the district wide mitigation strategy. This mitigation has meant that the Council
accords with the Habitat Regulations.
This application includes a draft Unilateral Undertaking (UU) if Members consider the
application acceptable the UU will need amending to reflect the required financial
contribution for the 3no. 3bed residential units to mitigate the additional recreational pressure
on the SPA area as well as some minor alterations to the template document.
Other matters
The application site adjoins heavily used highways to all sides, and therefore there is
concern regarding noise and air quality, particularly from vehicles waiting at the traffic-lighted
junction. The current application was accompanied with a Construction Management Plan
(CMP). The Council's Environmental Health team has reviewed this and have confirmed in
terms of deliveries to the site that these should avoid peak times and also should not be at
either end of the working day but within it. The Environmental Health team have stated that
details of proposed working hours, plant and certainly proposals that include piling must be
included within an updated CMP along with dust control measures. The submission of this
can be controlled by condition.
Whilst KCC Archaeology were not consulted on the current application, they were on the
previous scheme, which was of a similar nature. KCC Archeology confirmed on the earlier
application that given the archaeology within the area a condition relating to a programme of
archaeological works should be attached to any approval. This is considered reasonable and
to meet the test for conditions.
Conclusion
The application site lies within Ramsgate and so the principle of developing this site for
residential accommodation is acceptable. The key issues for consideration by members of

Page 65

Agenda Item 4c
the Committee are the impact of the proposed development on the form and character of the
area; the adjacent Conservation Area and other Heritage Assets; and the impact of the
proposal upon the amenities of the adjoining neighbours. When considering the issues set
out in the report above, it is your officer's opinion that the revised scheme is acceptable,
addressing the previous reasons for refusal, by creating adequately sized residential units on
a vacant plot on a prominent site. The scheme would also provide amenity space for each of
the units. Furthermore, the proposal continues the established development to either side of
the site. As such, it is considered that the proposed development will cause no harm to the
form and character of the area. The building has been designed to reflect the local
vernacular by using appropriate materials, design and proportions and the height has been
kept to a minimum in order to minimise any potential impacts on the character and
appearance of the adjacent Conservation Area when viewed from the public domain. It is
your officer's opinion that the scale of the proposed building will on balance cause no
material harm to the amenities of any neighbouring residents.
It is therefore recommended that Members defer and delegate the decision for approval
subject to safeguarding conditions and a Unilateral Undertaking to secure the SAMM
contribution, within 6 months of this Committee.

Case Officer
Gill Richardson

Page 66

Agenda Item 4c
TITLE:

F/TH/21/0064

Project

Land Adjacent To 2 Shah Place RAMSGATE Kent

Scale:

Page 67

This page is intentionally left blank

